
 

  Town of Simsbury 
 
933 HOPMEADOW STREET  P.O. BOX 495  SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT 06070 
 

                                    Lisa L. Heavner - First Selectman
 

 

Telephone  (860) 658-3230 
Facsimile (860) 658-9467 

LHeavner@simsbury-ct.gov 
www.simsbury-ct.gov 

An Equal Opportunity Employer 

8:30 – 7:00 Monday  
8:30 - 4:30  Tuesday through Thursday 

8:30 - 1:00 Friday 
 

Watch Board of Selectmen meetings LIVE and rebroadcast on Comcast Channel 96, rebroadcast 
on AT&T U-verse Channel 99 and on-demand on www.simsburytv.org 

 
SIMSBURY BOARD OF SELECTMEN  

Main Meeting Room – Simsbury Town Hall – 933 Hopmeadow Street, Simsbury 
Regular Meeting – November 9, 2015 – 7:00 p.m. 

 
 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
PUBLIC AUDIENCE 
 
PRESENTATIONS 

 
• Veterans Day Program – Tuesday, November 11th at 10:45 a.m. at Eno Memorial Hall 

 
• Annual Recycling Award 

 
FIRST SELECTMAN’S REPORT  
 
SELECTMEN ACTION 

 
a) Approve Tax Refunds 

 
b) Appoint James Rabbitt, AICP as Director of Planning and Community Development  

 
c) Consider Tax Abatement Request for Chestnut Hill Associates of Simsbury, LLC 

 
d) Approve Proposed Eagle Scout Project 

 
e) Approve Creation of a Friends of Simsbury Farms 501(c)3 for Simsbury Farms Complex 

 
f) Accept Donation from Peter Dumont for Video Equipment at Simsbury Farms Ice Rink 

 
g) Approve Temporary Right of Entry and Easements for the Tariffville Water Commission of the 

Tariffville Fire District 
 

h) Approve Fiscal Year 2015 Transfers 
 

http://www.simsbury-ct.gov/
http://www.simsburytv.org/


Board of Selectmen 
November 9, 2015   Page 2 
 

     

i) Review Recommendations as proposed by the Economic Development Task Force (EDTF) Process 
Group 

 
j) Accept the Performing Arts Center 2015 Administrative Fee of $10,000 per the Facility Operating 

Agreement  
 

OTHER BUSINESS  
 
a) Update on Senior Community Center Project 

 
APPOINTMENTS AND RESIGNATIONS  
 
a) Acknowledge the resignation Barbara Petitjean (R) as a regular member of the Board of Ethics 

effective October 21, 2015 
 

REVIEW OF MINUTES  
 
a) Regular Meeting of October 14, 2015 
 
SELECTMEN LIAISON AND SUB-COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 
1. Personnel  
2. Finance 
3. Welfare 
4. Public Safety 
5. Board of Education 
 
ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
a) Per General Statues section 1-200(6)(B) pending litigation: Town of Simsbury v. Corrine Nevers, et al 

 
ADJOURN FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
Possible Action 
 
ADJOURN    
 
Most of the documents reviewed by the Board of Selectmen at this meeting can be located at: 

http://www.simsbury-ct.gov/board-of-selectmen 
 

 

http://www.simsbury-ct.gov/board-of-selectmen


 

  Town of Simsbury 
 
933 HOPMEADOW STREET  P.O. BOX 495  SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT 06070 
              

 
 

 
BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING 

AGENDA SUBMISSION FORM 
 
 

1.  Title of submission:  Tax Refunds 
  

2.  Date of submission:  11-03-2015 
 

3.  Date of Board Meeting: 11-09-2015 
 

4.  Individual or Entity making the submission (Please include complete contact information.  
The identified individual(s) should be prepared to present information to the Board of 
Selectmen at the Board Meeting):      
 
Colleen O’Connor- Tax Collector 
 

5.  Action requested of the Board of Selectmen (Acceptance of gift, creation of reserve, 
approval of contract, information only, etc.  Be as specific as possible with respect to the 
desired action of the Board.):              
Individual or Entity making the submission requests that the Board of Selectmen: 

 
Tax refunds to be approved by State Statue 12-129.  Some of the reasons for refunds on cars         
are –vehicle sold, destroyed, donated, moved out of state or appealed the taxes.  

 
Real Estate refunds are due to the fact that both a bank and an attorney’s office pay the taxes 
because of sale of house or re-finance. 

 
6.  Summary of Submission (Include in your summary (i) relevant dates and timelines; (ii) 

parties involved; (iii) a description of financial terms and conditions specifically identifying 
the financial exposure/commitment of the Town of Simsbury; (iv) whether or not contracts, 
licenses and other legal documents have been reviewed by the Town’s counsel; and (v) 
other information that will inform the Board of Selectmen’s consideration of your 
submission.  Include any additional information in an attached memorandum.): 
   

7.  Financial Impact (Include a description of any impact on the finances of the Town of 
Simsbury):   

 
Approve tax refunds per attached printout in the amount of $ 12,118.92 
 

8.  Description of documents included with submission (All documents must be in final form 
and signed by the appropriate party.): 
The following documents are included with this submission and attached hereto: 
 
Tax Refunds.xls 



BILL NUMBER TAX FIRE INTEREST TOTAL

List 2012
Carpen Patricia O 12-01-1176 $118.58 $3.88 $122.46
Toner Gerard G and Jane T 12-01-8042 $105.53 $3.45 $108.98
McDonough Colin D 12-03-61991 $142.45 $4.66 $147.11

$0.00

Total 2012 $366.56 $11.99 $0.00 $378.55

List 2013
Carpen Patricia O 13-01-1194 $118.12 $3.78 $121.90
Toner Gerard G and Jane T 13-01-8062 $105.11 $3.37 $108.48
Ari Fleet LT 13-03-50496 $368.13 $11.80 $379.93
Hudson Betty 13-03-58534 $185.70 $5.95 $191.65
Hugabone Jeffrey Raymon 13-03-58562 $35.25 $1.13 $36.38
Marrone Dylan R 13-03-61504 $206.27 $6.61 $212.88
Neiman, Dara (Schmaelzle) 13-03-66462 $207.42 $6.65 $214.07

$0.00

Total 2013 $1,226.00 $39.29 $0.00 $1,265.29

List 2014
Corelogic (Benigno) 14-01-497 $1,923.00 $1,923.00
Toner Gerard G and Jane T 14-01-8090 $105.42 $3.38 $108.80
Ari Fleet LT 14-03-50476 $880.59 $28.24 $908.83
Ari Fleet LT 14-03-50481 $815.16 $26.13 $841.29
Ari Fleet LT 14-03-50491 $436.60 $13.99 $450.59
Ari Fleet LT 14-03-50498 $392.80 $12.59 $405.39
Ari Fleet LT 14-03-50504 $497.74 $15.96 $513.70
Banta Glen A 14-03-50838 $166.43 $166.43
Bergethon Priscilla G 14-03-51318 $119.72 $3.84 $123.56
Carlson Jeffrey 14-03-52603 $110.95 $3.56 $114.51
Financial Ser Veh Trust 14-03-55736 $569.79 $18.27 $588.06
Greenlaw Thompson Tyler 14-03-57078 $64.63 $2.07 $66.70
Herron Joseph P 14-03-57809 $1,046.71 $33.55 $1,080.26
Herron Joseph P 14-03-57810 $410.64 $23.66 $434.30
Honda Lease Trust 14-03-58122 $537.87 $17.24 $555.11
Honda Lease Trust 14-03-58123 $245.62 $7.87 $253.49
Honda Lease Trust 14-03-58131 $219.20 $7.02 $226.22
Honda Lease Trust 14-03-58149 $350.31 $11.23 $361.54
Honda Lease Trust 14-03-58219 $94.02 $3.02 $97.04
Honda Lease Trust 14-03-58226 $67.15 $2.15 $69.30
Hugabonne Cara T 14-03-58444 $43.99 $1.41 $45.40
Hugabonne Jeffrey Ramon 14-03-58446 $94.28 $3.02 $97.30
JP Morgan Chase Bank 14-03-59094 $285.83 $9.17 $295.00
Lamaj Nadir 14-03-60089 $151.26 $4.85 $156.11
Schmaelzle Landen A 14-03-66375 $184.49 $5.91 $18.07 $208.47
Toyota Lease Trust 14-03-68516 $407.28 $13.06 $420.34
Toyota Lease Trust 14-03-68645 $137.57 $4.41 $141.98
Vincent Cheryl 14-03-69219 $17.38 $0.56 $17.94
Washburn Rolland W 14-03-69611 $138.35 $4.43 $142.78



Wright Elizabeth B 14-03-70238 $11.58 $0.37 $11.95
$0.00

Total 2014 $10,526.36 $280.96 $18.07 $10,825.39

TOTAL 2012 $366.56 $11.99 $0.00 $378.55

TOTAL 2013 $1,226.00 $39.29 $0.00 $1,265.29

TOTAL 2014 $10,526.36 $280.96 $18.07 $10,825.39

$12,469.23

TOTAL ALL YEARS $12,118.92 $332.24 $18.07 $12,469.23



 

  Town of Simsbury 
 
933 HOPMEADOW STREET  P.O. BOX 495  SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT 06070 
              

 
 

 
BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING 

AGENDA SUBMISSION FORM 
 
 

1.  Title of submission: 
 

Confirm Appointment of Director of Planning and Community Development 
  

2.  Date of submission:  November 5, 2015 
 
 

3.  Date of Board Meeting:  November 9, 2015 
 
 

4.  Individual or Entity making the submission (Please include complete contact 
information.  The identified individual(s) should be prepared to present information 
to the Board of Selectmen at the Board Meeting): 
 
Thomas F. Cooke – Director of Administrative Services - (860) 658-3230 
 

5.  Action requested of the Board of Selectmen (Acceptance of gift, creation of 
reserve, approval of contract, information only, etc.  Be as specific as possible 
with respect to the desired action of the Board.): 
The Individual or Entity making the submission requests that the Board of Selectmen: 
 
Confirm the appointment of James D. Rabbitt, AICP as Director of Planning and 
Community Development 
 

6.  Summary of Submission (Include in your summary (i) relevant dates and timelines; 
(ii) parties involved; (iii) a description of financial terms and conditions specifically 
identifying the financial exposure/commitment of the Town of Simsbury; (iv) 
whether or not contracts, licenses and other legal documents have been reviewed 
by the Town’s counsel; and (v) other information that will inform the Board of 
Selectmen’s consideration of your submission.  Include any additional information 
in an attached memorandum.): 
 
With the resignation of Hiram Peck from the position of Director of Planning and 
Community Development on August 14, 2015, the Town of Simsbury conducted an 
extensive search for a replacement.  From August through September the position was 
advertised in the Hartford Courant, the American Planning Association jobs page, the 
Connecticut Planners ListServ, and the Town’s website. 
 
 



 
 
Finalists for the position were interviewed on September 28, 2015, by a panel consisting 
of: 
 
José Giner, AICP, Director of Planning & Economic Development, Town of Bloomfield 
Francis G. Armentano, AICP, Director of Community Development, Town of Granby 
Michael Glidden, Assistant Town Planner, Town of Simsbury 
Tom Cooke, Director of Administrative Services, Town of Simsbury 
Tom Roy, Director of Public Works, Town of Simsbury 
Sean Kimball, Deputy Director of Administrative Services, Town of Simsbury 
 
Two finalists were subsequently interviewed on October 7, 2015, by the First Selectman, 
Building Official Henry Miga and Messrs. Cooke, Kimball and Glidden. 
 
Mr. Rabbitt has 26 years of experience as a certified planner and, for the past 19 years, 
has been employed as a Senior Planner with the Southeastern Connecticut Council of 
Governments serving its 22 municipalities.  As a planner at both the municipal and 
regional level, he has participated in the preparation of multiple Regional Transportation 
Plans, two Regional Transit Plans, three Regional Plans of Conservation and 
Development and five municipal Plans of Conservation and Development (for three of 
which he served as principal author).  He has advised municipalities on the development 
or revision of their zoning codes and has been directly involved in numerous economic 
development and municipal development projects.  In addition to being a Member of the 
American Institute of Certified Planners, Mr. Rabbitt holds a Bachelor of Science in 
Business (Accounting) from Central Connecticut State University. 
 
Mr. Rabbitt’s qualifications and professional experience are more fully set forth in his 
resume, which is attached.  We are pleased to present him to the Board of Selectmen for 
confirmation as Director of Planning and Community Development. 
   

7.  Financial Impact (Include a description of any impact on the finances of the Town 
of Simsbury): 
 
NA 
 

8.  Description of documents included with submission (All documents must be in 
final form and signed by the appropriate party.): 
 The following documents are included with this submission and attached hereto: 
 
James D. Rabbitt, AICP Resume 
 



 

  Town of 
Simsbury 

 
933 HOPMEADOW STREET  P.O. BOX 495  SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT 06070 

              
 

 

 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING 
AGENDA SUBMISSION FORM 

 
 

1.  Title of submission: Tax Abatement Application for Chestnut Hill Associates of 
Simsbury, LLC  (called “CHAS”) 
 
  

2.  Date of submission: June 22, 2015  
 
 

3.  Date of Board Meeting: October 14, 2015 
 
 

4.  Individual or Entity making the submission (Please include complete contact 
information.  The identified individual(s) should be prepared to present information 
to the Board of Selectmen at the Board Meeting):  CHAS by John M. McCarthy, 
Member, 4 Squibnocket Road, Franklin, MA 02038 617-901-4798;  
William Crosskey II, Crosskey Architects LLC, One Union Place, Hartford, CT 06103 860-
724-3000; Arnold C. Sholovitz, Atty. for CHAS, 10 Hampshire Lane, Simsbury, CT 06070 
860-658-2578; Louis Perillo III, Director of Economic Development for Town of 
Southington, 860-276-6297; Jay Eno – executor of estate of Jackson Eno, 617-281-6639 
 

5.  Action requested of the Board of Selectmen (Acceptance of gift, creation of 
reserve, approval of contract, information only, etc.  Be as specific as possible 
with respect to the desired action of the Board.): 
The Individual or Entity making the submission requests that the Board of Selectmen: 
Grant the Tax Abatement for 690 Hopmeadow Street, Simsbury, CT as requested in the 
CHAS application of 6/22/15 and as amended 9/21/15. 
 
 

6.  Summary of Submission (Include in your summary (i) relevant dates and timelines; 
(ii) parties involved; (iii) a description of financial terms and conditions specifically 
identifying the financial exposure/commitment of the Town of Simsbury; (iv) 
whether or not contracts, licenses and other legal documents have been reviewed 
by the Town’s counsel; and (v) other information that will inform the Board of 
Selectmen’s consideration of your submission.  Include any additional information 
in an attached memorandum.): (i) Original Tax Abatement Application filed 1:30 PM on 



June 22, 2015; numerous meeting with First Selectman and town staff between that date 
and latest being October 14, 2015; Amendment for clarification purposes filed 9/21/15.  
(ii) depending upon the date, the attendees included: John M. McCarthy, Arnold C. 
Sholovitz and Louis Perillo for CHAS with Lisa Heavener, Tom Cooke, Sean Kimball, Bob 
DeCrescenzo, Dave Gardner, Joe Mancini, Henry Miga and other staff for the Town of 
Simsbury.  
(iii) In order to preserve the Historic Mansion, CHAS seeks a tax abatement over a period 
not to exceed 7 years with a suggestion that no taxes be paid during the two (2) years 
where demolition and construction occur. Please refer to the Tax Abatement Analysis 
letter dated October 5, 2015 from William Kane, MAI of Wellspeak, Dugas and Kane 
which letter is attached.  (iv) Town Counsel has reviewed the Application and 
Amendment. There are no other contracts to review.  (v)  Please refer to the Amended 
Exhibit A to Business Development Incentive Policy Application.  In summary, these 
Benefits to Town of Simsbury include without limitation: 
  

 Preservation of Historic Iconic Mansion 

 Preservation of Open Space (West and North Landscape) 

 Alignment with Award-winning Town Cherrette 

 Favorable Economic Impact During Construction (~$10M of economic activity) 

 Highly Favorable Economic Impact after Construction and Occupancy (~$2M) 

 Upon Tax Abatement Expiration, Tax Revenues Increase Significantly 

 Conveyance Tax upon Sale, potential multiplier if converted to condominiums 
 

   
7.  Financial Impact (Include a description of any impact on the finances of the Town 

of Simsbury): Based upon a typical multiplier effect, (as will be explained by Louis 
Perillo), will likely cause in excess of $2,000,000 annually to be spent locally by the 
residents of this project. During construction, local retail business will benefit from the 
influx of workmen spending locally. 
 
 

8.  Description of documents included with submission (All documents must be in 
final form and signed by the appropriate party.): 
 The following documents are included with this submission and attached hereto: 
A. Tax Abatement Application dated and already filed on 6/22/15 
B. Tax Abatement Application Amendment filed on 9/21/15 
C. Letter from William Kane, MAI, calculating an appropriate Tax Abatement, year by 

year. This letter is dated 10/6/2015 
D. CHAS Spreadsheet – Non-Recoverable Historic Preservation Costs 
E. Letter of support by Richard Anthony to be read into record by Jay Eno 
 
 
 















Mansion Interiors

CADD Drawings For Mansion 1,700 1,700

Environmental Legal Consultant-Mansion (Due Diligence) 12,000 12,000

Asbestos & Lead Testing-Mansion 9,022 9,022

Roof Consultant-Mansion 3,700 3,700

Abate ACM's & Lead-Mansion 137,500 220,000

Build Back Abated Materials-Mansion 220,000 330,000

Environmental Consultant-Mansion (ACM & Lead Abatement Oversight Process) 19,000 25,000

Remove/Fill In East Staircase To Restore Original Mansion Floor Plates 23,660 29,068

Mansion Exteriors

Repair/Repointing Redstone-Mansion 27,500 38,500

Replace Low-Sloped Roofs-Mansion 44,000 55,000

Replace Clay Tile Roofs-Mansion 330,000 440,000

Replace Windows-Mansion 165,000 192,500

Power Wash All/Paint Main Building Exterior Wood-Mansion 22,000 27,500

Sitework to Restore Mansion Building

Demolish Annex Buildings - Structure 33,000 44,000

Demolish Annex Buildings - Basement 27,500 33,000

Fill In Annex Buildings Basement (Use Fill From Site) 8,800 11,000

Landscape/Hardscape Restoration of Historic Mansion Surrounds 22,000 33,000

Misc.

Development & Project Management-Mansion 35,000 50,000

Architect/Engineering Studies-Mansion 25,000 35,000

Legal-Mansion (Preservation Easements, History/Research, Environmental) 30,000 30,000

Administrative & Accounting-Mansion 4,000 4,000

Property Taxes (Note 60-70% of site is Historic Mansion & Open Space) 72,000 72,000

Utility Bills -Mansion ($72K to date) during preservation efforts 31,210 31,210

Repairs & Maintenance-Mansion 4,000 5,000

Pollution Coverage Insurance Policy 21,013 21,013

General Liability Insurance-Mansion 6,000 6,000

Builder's Risk Insurance-Mansion 10,000 15,000

Subtotal 1,344,605 1,774,213

Contingency, 5% 67,230 88,711

Subtotals 1,411,835 1,862,924

Potential Historical Tax Credits On Above Scope

Potential State Historical Tax Credits, 25% (Hard Costs Only) (242,415) (333,142)

Potential Federal Historical Tax Credits, 20% (Hard Costs + Most Soft Costs) (221,016) (299,798)

Subtotals (463,431) (632,940)

Totals 948,404 1,229,984

Indirect Impacts

Forced structured parking due to strict preservation of  front lawn 420,000 525,000

Ongoing maintenance of  preserved open space (annually) 24,000 24,000

Note: 

CHAS has already spent ~$250k against the above referenced non-recoverable expenses to preserve the Mansion

Non-Recoverable Historic Preservation Expenses

The Mansion on Chestnut Hill

Estimated Cost Range

October 14, 2015

1 of 1
Harbor Constructors, Inc. (813) 831-3536



BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE “Subject to Approval” 
SPECIAL MEETING - OCTOBER 23, 2015  Page 1 of 4 
 

1 
 

I. Call to Order 

The Special Meeting of the Business Development Committee was called to order at 8:33 a.m. in the 
Main Meeting Room of the Simsbury Town Offices, 933 Hopmeadow Street, Simsbury, CT.  Present 
were:  First Selectman Lisa Heavner and Committee members – Mark Deming (Economic Development 
Commission representative), Peter Pabich (member at large), Derek Peterson (Zoning Commission 
representative) and Linda Schofield (Board of Finance representative).  Others in attendance included:  
Thomas Cooke, Director of Administrative Services, Joseph Mancini, Finance Director, David Gardner, 
Assessor, Attorney Robert DeCrescenzo and other interested parties.   
 
II. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Everyone stood for the Pledge of Allegiance 
 
III.  Public Audience 

No members of the public spoke at Public Audience  
 
IV.  Review of Minutes 

a. Special Meeting – October 14, 2015 
Minutes for the October 14, 2015 Special Meeting will stand as submitted. 
 

V. Action Item 
a.  Discuss and possibly make a recommendation to the Board of Selectmen regarding: 

 
• Application of Chestnut Hill Associates of Simsbury, LLC for requested tax abatement under the 

adopted Simsbury Tax Abatement Program. 
 
An updated submission was reviewed by members of the committee and Attorney Arnold Sholovitz 
discussed the changes.  He noted that they did receive comments and collectively worked with their 
certified appraisers on how the money would flow within the seven years of a tax abatement.   
 
Mr. McCarthy noted that the two year construction period, which was a concern to members at the 
last meeting, will be dealt with in the normal course of business and not apply to the tax abatement 
period.  He discussed the discount rate and the different value to both parties with the discount of 
money.   
 



BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE “Subject to Approval” 
SPECIAL MEETING - OCTOBER 23, 2015  Page 2 of 4 
 

2 
 

Mr. McCarthy stated that they are trying to fill a gap and hope to get some financial help from State 
and Federal tax credits.  He also requested support from the Town for approval to abridge some of this 
gap at the request level that has been made. 
 
Mr. McCarthy discussed the future taxes after abatement and how it will compare to Mill Commons 
also located in Simsbury.  He noted that they would like to price the rent on what they think the 
market can handle.  Mr. McCarthy noted that it will be an average of $2,500 to $2,700.  
Ms. Schofield asked for clarification on what portion of the estimated taxes would relate to the 
apartments in the historic building and what portion on the new ones to be built.  Mr. McCarthy stated 
that seven of the thirty eight apartments will be in the mansion and hopes these will be the price 
leaders.  Mr. McCarthy and Mr. Gardner discussed the future value of these apartments. 
 
Ms. Schofield stated that she would like to know what the dollar amount is going to be or place a cap 
on the percentage of the tax abatement.  Attorney DeCrescenzo discussed the options of picking a 
number and spreading it out over the seven years or it can be phased in so that it is less in the first two 
years and increment amounts over the next five. 
 
Ms. Sarah Nielsen noted that they cannot guarantee any grants to this project, as they are very 
specific.  She did note, however, that they can make the effort and do the research to match up with 
any grants that are possible.   
 
Ms. Heavner asked what the profitability would be for the projected rental rate presented.  Mr. 
McCarthy discussed the layout of the one and two bedrooms and how it would impact the rent.  He 
also noted the unknowns involved with the renovation of the mansion and other risks.   
 
Mr. Deming asked if the lenders are demanding a specific number in the tax abatement.  Mr. McCarthy 
stated they are looking for personal guarantees.  He explained that investors want to see something 
for their risk.  Mr. McCarthy noted that they are trying to get a return of 10% to 12% range.   He noted 
that the current rate of return without the abatement is 7.5%.   
 
Ms. Heavner asked Mr. McCarthy what he believes the rate of return would be after the seven year 
abatement period ends.  Mr. McCarthy discussed the items that would affect the rate of return for the 
future and hopes it would be greater than the investment. 
 
Mr. Pabich questioned the business development guideline and that the intent is to draw and retain 
businesses to the area.  He stated that this project is being applied for under the same guideline and 
does not appear to fit what the guideline was set to do.    Ms. Nielsen noted that, with apartments 
located downtown, there are a higher percentage of jobs created within a mile radius.   



BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE “Subject to Approval” 
SPECIAL MEETING - OCTOBER 23, 2015  Page 3 of 4 
 

3 
 

 
Attorney DeCrescenzo discussed that the Business Development Committee members and the Board 
of Selectmen are legally bound by Statute.    
 
Ms. Schofield voiced her concern regarding other apartment requests and that this committee cannot 
set a precedent for giving tax abatements for new apartment construction.  She noted that the 
business incentive guidelines referred to historic preservation and recommended that the Commission 
focus on the historic aspect of the project.   
 
Mr. Deming noted that this meeting is being held mainly for the historic building and not the 
apartments behind it that are going to be built.  He also noted that, because the Town is very 
interested in keeping the historic building, the abatement has to be confined to the unrecoverable 
costs to bring the historic building up to the seven units.  Mr. Deming also would like to take into 
consideration what tax credits would be given by the state and federal government. 
 
Attorney Sholovitz and Mr. McCarthy discussed some of the issues with the historical building that add 
to the unrecoverable and recoverable costs. 
 
Ms. Heavner noted that this committee will provide a recommendation to the Board of Selectmen for a 
tax abatement.  She noted that the Board of Selectmen can follow or disregard the recommendation 
and the policy on this decision.   
 
Ms. Heavner listed some guidelines the committee members should keep in mind when making their 
recommendation for the tax abatement amount.  Ms. Heavner has also asked the Town attorney to 
draft an abatement contract with conditions.  She noted that it should include restrictions, a 
preservation easement and extent of a grant abatement. 
 
Mr. Peterson stated that any abatement applied before C of O should have some clawback provision if 
they do not get it.  Ms. Heavner listed other things to consider in making this decision. 
 
Committee members discussed their opinions on an amount for the tax abatement.  All members 
agreed on a maximum of $300,000 for the tax abatement.  Members noted conditions to be included 
in the tax abatement which includes the financial viability and reputation of the developer. 
 
Ms. Schofield made a motion that the Business Development Committee recommend a tax abatement 
for Chestnut Hill Associates of Simsbury, LLC in an amount not to exceed $300,000 over a period of 
seven years for the stated public purpose of obtaining a preservation easement for the Eno Mansion 
with all other restrictions and limitations necessary to protect the Town’s interests, as determined by 



BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE “Subject to Approval” 
SPECIAL MEETING - OCTOBER 23, 2015  Page 4 of 4 
 

4 
 

Town Counsel, to be included in the contract providing for the tax abatement.  Mr. Peterson seconded 
the motion.  All were in favor and the motion passed 

V. Adjourn 
  
Mr. Peterson moved to adjourn the meeting at 9:55 a.m. and Mr. Deming seconded the motion.  All 
were in favor and the motion passed. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Leslie Brigham 
Commission Clerk 
 
 





















BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE “Subject to Approval” 
SPECIAL MEETING – OCTOBER 14, 2015         Page 1 of 3 

 
 

I. Call to Order 
The Special Meeting of the Business Development Committee was called to order at 8:30 a.m. in 
the Main Meeting Room of the Simsbury Town Offices. Present were: First Selectman Lisa 
Heavner, Committee members – Peter Pabich (member at large), Derek Peterson (Zoning 
Commission representative), and Linda Schofield (Board of Finance representative). Others in 
attendance included: Thomas Cooke, Director of Administrative Services, Joseph Mancini, Finance 
Director, David Gardner, Assessor, Michael Glidden, Assistant Town Planner, and Attorney Robert 
DeCrescenzo.  Present for Chestnut Hill Associates of Simsbury were John McCarthy and Arnold 
Sholovitz. Others present included Rich Correia, and Sarah Nielsen for Simsbury Main Street 
Partnership. 

 
II. Pledge of Allegiance 

Everyone stood for the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 

III. Public Audience 
No members of the public spoke at Public Audience. 
 

IV. Action Item 
 
a. Discuss and possibly make a recommendation to the Board of Selectmen regarding: 

 
• Application of Chestnut Hill Associates of Simsbury, LLC for requested tax abatement 

under the adopted Simsbury Tax Abatement Program  
 
Ms. Heavner noted that Committee member Louis George (Economic Development Committee 
representative) had recused himself the prior day.  Discussion ensued concerning the advisability 
of continuing the application process to include a representative of the Economic Development 
Committee. 
 
Attorney Sholovitz provide a brief background on his research of the property identifying it as 
potentially is the most historic property in Simsbury. He also reviewed various development 
options considered by the current owners, noting that they had determined that developing the 
property as residential real estate was the best option. He stated there had been several 
unsolicited offers for a retail establishment that may or may not preserve the building which were 
rejected by the owners. He identified the stability of real estate taxes as a primary concern of 
potential developers. 
 
John McCarthy, Chestnut Hill Associates of Simsbury, LLC member stated his interest in the 
property and that he needs to make the project economically viable. He provided background 
information concerning his involvement in the project and the evaluation of different 
development options. 
 
Attorney Sholovitz noted that that the Town has a preservation easement on the front lawn and 
Drake Hill side of the property.  



BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE “Subject to Approval” 
SPECIAL MEETING – OCTOBER 14, 2015         Page 2 of 3 

 
 
Mr. McCarthy stated they have received input from a variety of construction companies to validate 
their numbers and although they are not developers they have a good understanding of costs 
construction restoration and recovery. He stated a lot of the expenses related to the mansion are 
not recoverable.  
 
Discussion ensued concerning the difference between recoverable versus non-recoverable 
expenses. Mr. McCarthy explained the process of costs associated with new construction to costs 
associated with restorations. With restorations expenses that are would not be part of new 
construction such as asbestos removal are non-recoverable as it would not be put into a new 
building. 
 
Ms. Heavner stated that the owners had notified the Town that they were not interested in 
pursuing the option of building a Senior Community Center on the property. 
  
Mr. Peterson asked if the owners had pursued state and federal grants and discussion ensued 
regarding the owner’s efforts to secure grants for preservation of the mansion.  The Committee 
also discussed the differences between residential options such as condominiums and apartments, 
office space and the market value of these options.  The discussion included resident feedback on 
apartments in the recent Town survey and Mr. Correia noted the value of apartments located near 
the downtown.  Ms. Nielsen from Main Street Partnerships commented the Charrette proved 
downtown housing opportunities are needed and wanted. 
 
Discussion ensued concerning the Town’s prior and current tax abatement policies.  Ms. Heavner 
noted that these policies do not have the force of law and that the state statute applies.  She 
reviewed a spreadsheet of prior abatements and noted that $150,000 total has been the largest 
abatement given.  The Committee was advised that the current property tax on the site is 
approximately $36,000. 
 
Ms. Schofield requested clarification on several items in the various documents regarding requests 
that all fees be waived, that no taxes be paid for two years and that taxes be held at current levels 
for the following seven years. Discussion ensued regarding whether the request was for seven 
years of abatement or nine years with the conclusion that the statute limits the abatement to a 
maximum of seven years.  Mr. McCarthy stated that the owners are flexible on the number of 
years and it is relevant to what the taxes would be and how it would be assessed. 
 
Mr. DeCrescenzo explained the statute allows you to fix the assessment at $0. He stated if the 
Board of Selectmen approves an abatement a contract is normally drawn up between the property 
owner and the town with certain performance milestones and conditions including bankruptcy 
contingencies, whether or not the property can be sold and other conditions.   
 
Ms. Schofield asked for information about the owner’s financial backing and investors.  Mr. 
McCarthy stated they have had productive conversations with potential lenders and investors. Mr. 
DeCrescenzo stated that a triggering event for the tax abatement would be to show funding. He 
added that preservation of the historic property was a primary Town interest and discussed 



BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE “Subject to Approval” 
SPECIAL MEETING – OCTOBER 14, 2015         Page 3 of 3 

potential state and federal funding.  He added that currently the taxes are based on the October 1, 
2014 grand list and there is no ability to abate those taxes other than to sell them their own tax 
lien for which strongly recommended against. The first opportunity to abate is the tax bill due on 
July 1, 2016. Discussion continued regarding various ways the abatement could be triggered such 
as building permit, CO, and when the abatement might start. 
 
The Committee discussed the potential precedent set by an abatement and Mr. DeCrescenzo 
stated that if the abatement request was for historic preservation purposes this would be a 
distinguishing factor.  Ms. Schofield questioned if the building was designated as historic and was 
informed that was not.  Discussion ensued concerning the advantages and disadvantages of such a 
designation and the status of historic preservation grant requests.  Discussion ensued regarding a 
purchase of the property by a retail business and the impact on protection of the historic nature of 
the property. 
 
Discussion ensued concerning the financial aspects of the proposed plan of development, as well 
as the role of current and future investors. 
 
The Committee agreed to continue the discussion at the next meeting with a representative of the 
Economic Development Committee present.  The member will be provided with a recording of this 
meeting to prepare for the next meeting.  Mr. Cooke stated that he would contact the chair of the 
Economic Development Commission to request a representative and that he would email 
proposed dates for the next meeting to the Committee. 
 

V. Adjourn 
Mr. Peterson moved to adjourn the meeting at 10:21 a.m. and Ms. Schofield seconded the motion. 
All were in favor and the motion passed. 

 
 Respectfully submitted, 
 
 JoAnn Martin 
 Executive Secretary 



1/22/2008 C:\Users\martin\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\B3B6WWM2\BusinessAbatements_All_05212010

Owner Location

List 
Year 
First 
Abated

Assess. 
After

Assess. 
Before

First Year 
Tax 
Increase

Abatement 
FYE 6/05

Abatement 
FYE 6/06

Abatement 
FYE 6/07

 Abatement 
FYE 6/08

Abatement 
FYE 6/09

Abatement 
FYE 6/10

Abatement 
FYE 6/11

Abatement 
FYE 6/12

Abatement 
FYE 6/13

Total Abated 
(or to be 
Abated)

Added tax 
based on 
three times 
first year 
change**

Net Tax 
Increase

Ensign-Bickford Realty 175 Powder Forest Drive 2003 5,673,300 5,597,000 $2,594 $1,297 $1,038 $778 $3,113 $7,782 $4,669

Ensign-Bickford Realty 100 Grist Mill Road 2003 2,479,380 2,240,000 $8,139 $4,069 $3,256 $2,442 $9,767 $24,417 $14,650

Hermes LLC 765-783 Hopmeadow St* 2003 617,900 506,930 $1,817 $908 $727 $545 $2,180 $5,451 $3,271

LBH LLC 141 West Street 2003 276,200 114,320 $5,504 $2,201 $1,651 $1,101 $4,953 $16,512 $11,559

Fiddler's LLC 6 Wilcox Street 2005 2,052,040 501,610 $55,660 $27,830 $22,264 $16,698 $66,792 $166,980 $100,188

Fiddler's LLC 750 Hopmeadow Street 2005 375,590 216,460 $5,713 $2,856 $2,285 $1,714 $6,855 $17,139 $10,284

Holloways Inc. 1430 Hopmeadow Street 2005 603,370 59,980 $19,508 $9,754 $7,803 $5,852 $23,409 $58,524 $35,115

Nagy Realty Management, 
LLC (a) 30 Wolcott Road 2006 423,180 298,820 $4,589 $2,295 $1,836 $1,377 $5,507 $13,767 $8,260

Hoffman Phyllis W Trustee 
of Hoffman Rose Rhea 1990 
Family TRS 46 Albany Turnpike 2008 4,520,490 776,150 $110,832 $55,416 $44,332 $33,250 $132,998 $332,496 $199,498

Hoffman Enterprises, 
Limited Partnership 36 Albany Turnpike 2009 7,547,830 3,372,130 $125,688 $62,844 $50,275 $37,706 $150,825 $377,064 $226,239

7 Deer Park LLC 7 Deer Park Road 2009 576,230 370,270 $6,199 $2,479 $1,860 $1,240 $5,579 $18,597 $13,018
Total Approved 
Abatements $8,475 $6,672 $45,306 $34,647 $26,100 $56,793 $109,655 $85,385 $38,946 $411,979 $1,038,729 $626,750

ABATEMENT TO BE 
CONSIDERED

Phonon Corporation ** 90 Wolcott Road 2009P 1,915,877 751,060 $35,585 $17,792
2010 2,036,770 751,060 $39,278 $15,711 $11,783 $45,286 $114,141 $68,855

1,285,710
Totals Including Phonon $8,475 $6,672 $45,306 $34,647 $26,100 $56,793 $127,447 $101,096 $50,729 $457,265 $1,152,870 $695,605

* "Before" assessment is from the 2000 Grand List
(a) First was $2,229 - corrected for spreadsheet
** Phonon Corporation, one year, with pro-rated increment, then two more years























































































































































Page 1 of 10 
 

REVISED 4/20/15   
 
 
 

Statement of Purpose 
for the  

Simsbury Business Incentive Program 
 
In an ongoing effort to attract, retain and expand local businesses, the Town of 
Simsbury has adopted an incentive and abatement program. Created in accordance 
with Connecticut General Statutes 12-65b and 12-65h, the program allows the 
Town to enter into written agreements with owners and/or lessees of certain real 
property where targeted businesses are located or could be properly located in 
accordance with adopted plans in certain locations in Simsbury. 
 
The decision to approve a request for tax abatement or any benefit described in this 
Policy is within the sole and exclusive discretion of the Simsbury Board of 
Selectmen. The filing of an application under this Policy or any recommendation 
of the Business development Committee or any other Town Agency is not binding 
on the Board of Selectmen and creates no rights for the applicant or any obligation 
for the Town. 
 
This Business Incentive Program is completely separate from the statutorily 
required local land use approval process. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 10 
 

Revised March 17, 2015 
 

ADOPTED 6/22/15 

Resolution Regarding the Establishment of a 
Business Development Incentive Policy  

(“the Policy”) 
 

WHEREAS, The Board of Selectmen of the Town of Simsbury seeks to encourage the growth and 
expansion of resident businesses as well as the initial location of specific types of businesses within the 
Town of Simsbury; and 
 
WHEREAS, to help accomplish this goal the Town of Simsbury, acting through its Board of Selectmen, 
hereby establishes a process to take advantage of available economic development incentives as found 
permissible by the Connecticut General Statutes, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town may offer qualified applicants temporary tax abatement pursuant to CGS § 12-65b. 
and § 12-65h., and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town may also offer applicants other incentives as included herein  if the proposed new 
development or expanded existing development are deemed to be in the best interests of the Town as 
described in this Policy, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town acting through the Business Development Committee (BDC) will review specific 
business development incentives on a case-by-case basis and will base the decision to grant any 
incentives to any specific project applicant on the requirements of this adopted policy and the overall 
best interests of the Town based on the required application materials, and 
 
WHEREAS, in the event of unusual or extraordinary circumstances presented in writing by the applicant, 
the Business Development Committee may recommend to the Board of Selectmen approval of the 
waiver, if requested in writing by the applicant, of any requirement contained in the Policy so long as the 
development is found to be consistent with the stated goals and objectives of Simsbury’s adopted 
economic development plans. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the following program of incentives is hereby adopted and shall 
be implemented as indicated hereafter: 

 

 

 

 



Page 3 of 10 
 

 THE TYPES OF BUSINESSES or INDUSTRIES TARGETED BY THIS POLICY: 

The Business Development Incentive Policy Program will be used to target the following types of high 
quality businesses that generate substantial tax revenue to the Town of Simsbury: 

1. Corporate headquarters and satellite offices 

2. Retail uses 

3. Campus-style office development 

4. Research and development and high technology and information technology facilities, especially  
    those which are environmentally sustainable. 
 
5. Manufacturing facilities as defined in Chapter  588 of CGS. (CGS 12-81, Subdivision 72 defines  
    mfg.  facilities.) 
 
6. Existing Simsbury business expansion as defined in §12-65b(b). including office use, retail use,  
    permanent residential use, transient residential use, manufacturing use, warehouse, storage or  
   distribution use , structured multilevel parking use necessary possibly in connection with a mass  
   transit system,  information technology, recreation facilities, transportation facilities, or mixed- use  
   development as defined in Section 8-13m. In order to be eligible the business use must be consistent  
   with the list of types of businesses or industries targeted by this Policy (on Page 3). 
 
7. Mixed Use Development which contains at least 25% of its floor area designated for commercial  

use if combined with a specific plan for the timely, acceptable, sequential development of the entire   
site and located in the Simsbury Town Center Code area, and existing area zoned for business use, an 
approved Planned Area Development (PAD) Zone or in an established Village District. 

 
8. New or existing recreational or entertainment businesses which are in keeping with an adopted goal 
    or plan. 
 
 

The Town is interested in attracting sustainable businesses which will: 

1. Generate additional tax revenue through real estate and/or personal property taxes 
2. Provide lasting employment opportunities.  
3. Provide high quality goods and services 
4. Improve the aesthetics of the community or a particular area of the community so designated for  
    such development. 
5. Occupy, use and/or preserve a historic site. 
6. Provide desirable recreational and entertainment opportunities. 
 



Page 4 of 10 
 

The following types of enterprises shall receive priority in consideration for recommendation for 
abatement or incentives as outlined in this policy: 

1. Those within targeted locations as identified in this Policy, the current Comprehensive Plan or 
adopted Economic Development Plan. 

2. Those proposing a project that forwards a stated goal or objective which will bring about a 
substantial,  positive impact on the Grand List.  

a. For new businesses a substantial impact will be defined as contributing at least an additional  
    one and one-half (1.5) million dollars in real estate value to the grand list. 

b. For those businesses that are expanding and meet the above criteria as defined and  
    contributing a minimum increase of one (1) million dollars in real estate value to the grand list 
or an increase of 50% of the current real estate value, whichever is greater. 

 
TAX ABATEMENT SCHEDULE*  

 
Minimum Investment Period of Abatement 

Not More than 

(1) Not less than $3 Million 7 years 

(2) $500,000 - $2,999,999 2 years 

(3) Equal to 50% of the increase  
in the assessment 

3 years 

(4) For retail businesses: 
To be set by Ordinance  

To be set by Ordinance 

 

* Maximum abatement possible, may not be granted for all applications. Percentage abatement applies 
    to the increase in assessment. (example:  50%/40%/30%) 
* Varies based on specifics of application and determination of positive contribution to town. 
 

 

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVE GUIDELINES: 

Overview and Background: 

A. The objective of offering a tax abatement or business development incentive as stated in the 
Purpose above is to encourage the attraction or expansion of specific types of businesses 
through the establishment of a public/private partnership, which results in growth expansion 
consistent with the Town of Simsbury’s adopted plans, codes or regulations. 

B. Any proposed abatements or incentives are subject to final approval by the Board of Selectmen 
after referral to the BOS by the Business Development Committee. 

C. The Board of Selectman, in adopting these incentive guidelines hereby establishes the following 
objectives consistent with adopted plans and sound economic growth. 



Page 5 of 10 
 

The project must: 

1. Provide a clear benefit to the Town as determined by: 
a. Staff review  of application facts and completeness, based on program policy, objectives 

and guidelines,  and 
b. Recommendation of the Business Development  Committee,  and  
c. Approval  of the Board of Selectmen.  

2. Create substantial, long term tax base growth. 
3. Provide stimulation of the local economic conditions for existing businesses, and the 

            development of future related or unrelated industry groups. 
4. Accomplish community goals as stated in the current Comprehensive Plan, Plan of 

            Conservation and Development or adopted economic development plan. 
5. Must have a solid financial base and growth potential as determined by the Director of Finance. 
6. Have parent or subsidiaries of businesses which are the subject of or connected to such 

            applications which must  have a satisfactory record of environmental compliance as may be  
            documented, or not, by Connecticut Department of Energy and Environmental Protection  
            (DEEP). 
 

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVE MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: 

1. The proposed project is a permitted use, or may be permitted by the Zoning Commission 
through a process established in the Simsbury Zoning Regulations. If rezoning is required, the 
abatement/incentive may be conditional. 

2. Delinquency in any fees or taxes that have not been waived and that are otherwise due to the 
Town of Simsbury from the applicant or any related entity shall render the applicant and 
application ineligible. 

3. If the end user of the proposed facility is a lessee, tax benefits must be clearly reflected in the 
lease as accruing to the Applicant entity for at least the term of the abatement period. 

4. Applicant must not be in violation of any law, regulation or agreement with town, state or 
federal government, notwithstanding any tax lien with governmental forbearance. 

5.  Applicants must be committed to make a significant investment in new or renovated real  
property in Simsbury.  

6. Applicant’s project must provide new employment opportunities or enhancement to the tax 
base or encourage technological innovation and/or investment and address a goal(s) or 
objective identified in the Town’s adopted plans. 

7. A statement is to be provided by the applicant as to the ownership structure of the real 
property, personal property and operating company including information as to the ownership 
of any applicable subsidiary companies. 

8. There is a firm commitment to remain in the Town beyond the length of the abatement or other 
incentive period, if applicable. 

9. All tax obligations to the Town by the applicant must be current except in the case when the 
applicant is seeking approval to purchase existing tax liens. 



Page 6 of 10 
 

10. The project should meet goals and objectives identified in the adopted Plan of Conservation and 
Development and the adopted 1995 Economic Development Strategic Plan as it may be 
amended. 

11. An agreement entered into pursuant to this Policy shall not be subject to assignment, transfer, 
or sale without the written consent of the Simsbury Board of Selectmen. 

12. After approval of an application by the Board of Selectmen and approval of a final site plan by 
the Simsbury Zoning Commission, construction shall commence within twelve (12) months and 
shall be completed within twenty-four (24) months unless otherwise extended by the Board of 
Selectmen in its sole discretion. 

13. In the event that the applicant, during the period of its participation in this program: 
a. relocates its business from Simsbury, 
b. becomes delinquent in taxes or fees, 
c. closes its operation, or 
d. declares bankruptcy, 
 

then any tax abatement or incentive benefit enjoyed by the applicant under this program shall 
be forfeited and the applicant shall be required to pay back all taxes that would have been 
assessed had the applicant not participated in the program. 

14. If benefits were obtained fraudulently, the town may pursue any recourse allowed by law 
including prosecution and obtaining penalty fees. 

 

TYPES OF ASSISTANCE AVAILABLE: 

Tax Abatement: The assessment of the real property and all improvements to be constructed thereon 
may be reduced for a period of time and under the conditions set forth in the above information chart. 

The period of reduced assessment shall commence with the Grand List immediately following the 
issuance of a final certificate of occupancy for the new or expanded construction and upon the 
execution of an agreement satisfactory to the Town Attorney that will set the terms and conditions of 
the abatement/incentive based on the established parameters. 

 
Waiving or Reduction of Any Town Permit Fees for targeted businesses and industries: 

The BDC Committee may recommend to the Board of Selectmen waiver of up to 50% of any Town 
permit fees or a smaller portion of such fee upon request and determination that such a fee waiver 
would encourage the development or expansion of quality businesses especially those of the targeted 
industries. The Board of Selectmen may upon recommendation of the BDC agree to waive a portion up 
to 50% of the entire fee as it may determine necessary to encourage the desirable development. The 
development must have been determined to meet the applicable desirable criteria as outlined herein. 
The Town and the applicant shall enter into an agreement which will set forth the terms and conditions 
based upon the established guidelines. The agreement shall be approved by the Town Attorney. 

 



Page 7 of 10 
 

Infrastructure Rebate Program: 

An applicant who is applying for a complying new or expanded existing business development that 
meets the criteria herein may also apply for a partial rebate for infrastructure which is located in the 
public right of way and approved by the appropriate Town Departments, Town Engineer, and the Board 
of Selectmen for the construction of infrastructure which the Town Engineer determines will serve a 
valid public purpose, be in the best long term interest of the Town and may also, in certain 
developments, clearly contribute to the creation of a more walkable, sustainable community. Note that 
only improvements that are public and are constructed in the public right of way are eligible for any 
potential rebate. Parking facilities, for example, which are available to the public may be determined to 
be eligible for this program. 

The percentage rebate which may be applied to any given development under this infrastructure rebate 
program is to be determined and recommended by the Town Engineer.  The maximum percentage of 
rebate is to be 50% of the cost as determined acceptable by the Town Engineer. Certification of actual 
cost shall be made to the satisfaction of the Town Engineer. The actual approval of the infrastructure 
rebate including percentage shall be determined by the Board of Selectmen and also be based on 
available funding.  

 
Application Requirements and Procedures: 

1. Applications shall be made to the Director of Planning and Community Development. 
2. Applications shall be reviewed by the First Selectman. 
3. Applications shall be referred to the Director of Finance. 
4. Applications shall contain at least the information specified herein as required by this policy. 
5. For purposes of reviewing these Applications, there is established a Business Development 

Committee (BDC). The Committee shall consist of five (5) members. The First Selectman shall 
serve as the Chairperson of the Committee. The remaining four (4) members of the Committee 
shall be appointed by the First Selectman and one member shall be chosen from each of the 
then existing membership of the Economic Development Commission, the Board of Finance and 
the Zoning Commission. The remaining member of the Committee shall be chosen at large. 

6. The First Selectman shall refer applications that meet the minimum requirements as set forth in 
this document to the BDC for consideration and recommendation to the Board of Selectmen. 

7. Upon receipt of a complete Application the BDC shall report the findings and recommendations 
of the Committee to the Board of Selectmen for action. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 8 of 10 
 

APPLICATION PROCEDURE: 

STEP 1: 

Applicant submits a written report, application and Economic Development Impact 
Statement to the Director of Planning, who will then suggest to the BDC, a Business Development 
Incentive, based on the report, the development’s direct and indirect economic and fiscal impacts and 
compliance with the overall Business Development Policy. 
 
The applicant’s request should include at least the following types of information: 

1.  Specific Assistance Requested and rationale for the request. 

a. Tax assessment reduction specifics on a year to year basis, estimated as closely as possible. 
b. Waiving or reduction of any Town permit fee, specifying the amount of requested waiver 
c. Any infrastructure rebate request specifically the amount of request with all construction 
    details. 

2.  Description of the project including an estimate of the number of jobs to be created and their wages. 

3.  Description of the applicant’s business including a listing of its officers. 

4.  Description of the application and its products or services. 

5.  An estimate of the value of the proposed improvements. 

6.  An estimate of employment provided, full-time and part-time.  

6.  An anticipated project construction schedule. 

7.  Identification of any other public incentives, financial or otherwise, which have been requested and  
     are included in the project financing. 
8.  A statement of the benefits to the Town for granting an incentive including an estimate of local taxes  
     to be paid on a year to year basis for as long as the requested incentive lasts. 
9. All other information requested by the BDC and /or per the Minimum Criteria/Information of this 
    Policy. 
 

STEP 2: 

1. The Planning Director shall refer the application to the Business Development Committee (BDC) for 
review and recommendation to the Board of Selectmen.  

2. The BDC shall review and discuss the application. Questions of fact shall be answered by the 
applicant or the Director of Planning. 

STEP 3: 

The BDC shall make a recommendation to the BOS on the application. 

 

 



Page 9 of 10 
 

STEP 4: 

Upon preliminary approval by the Board of Selectmen and at the direction of the First Selectman, the 
Planning Director and if applicable, the Town Engineer, will work with the applicant, and the Town 
Attorney to draft a legal contract that assures that all provisions of the Business Development Incentive 
program as preliminarily approved by the BOS will be met. Contract details will be on a case by case 
basis depending on the project specifics. 

STEP 5: 

In order for the incentives to become official, the Board of Selectmen must approve the final Business 
Development Incentive(s) in contract form by majority vote.  
 
STEP 6.  
 
The BOS shall also authorize the First Selectman to sign the proposed contract once approved as to form 
by the Town Attorney. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 10 of 10 
 

 

Appendix A  

Application Minimum Requirements: 

Does the application contain:      YES       NO 

Specific assistance requested: 
        a.Tax abatment 

  

        b. Reduction of Fees   

        c. Infrastructure rebate 
 

  

Project Description.   

Description of Business.   

Description of application products & services.   

Est value of proposed improvements.   

Employment  to provided (Estimated or Actual). 
      a. Full time (by year) 
      b. Part time (by year) 

  

Estimated project relocation or construction schedule.   

Other requested incentives.   

Statement of benefits to Town.   

All other requested info.   

 

 

 



1107907 

REVIEW DRAFT 
 

TOWN OF SIMSBURY 
AGREEMENT REGARDING 

REAL PROPERTY TAX ASSESSMENT 
690 HOPMEADOW STREET 
SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT 

 
 
 This Agreement is entered into this ___ day of November, 2015, 

by and between the TOWN OF SIMSBURY, a municipal corporation and body politic having its 

corporate limits located within the County of Hartford and State of Connecticut (hereinafter the 

"Town"), and CHESTNUT HILL ASSOCIATES, LLC of Simsbury (“Company”) a Connecticut 

corporation with a principal place of business at 8 Plank Hill Road, Simsbury, Connecticut. 

WITNESSETH: 

 WHEREAS, Company is responsible to pay all real property taxes associated with the 

Real Property known as 690 Hopmeadow Street, Simsbury, Connecticut (‘the Real Property”); 

and 

 WHEREAS, Company intends to make improvements to the land and existing structures 

on the Real Property, including the construction of approximately 31 units of newly constructed 

apartments, and 7 units of apartments within the existing Ensign House which will be located on 

the Real Property (the “Facility”); and 

 WHEREAS, the Proposed Improvements to the Facility were approved by the Zoning 

Commission on February 25, 2015, Application #14-48 (“the Zoning Commission Approval”); 

and 



2 
 
1107907 

 WHEREAS, the estimated costs to be incurred by Company in making the above-

described improvements to and constructing the Facility on the Real Property will be a minimum 

of $______________________; and  

 WHEREAS, the Town, acting by and through its duly authorized Tax Assessor, will 

assess and value the Real Property and personal property on the Grand List of October 1, 2015; 

and 

 WHEREAS, the Town will value all the property at its true and actual value; and 

 WHEREAS, in the course of occupying, developing and utilizing the Real Property, 

Company will (a) preserve the historic Ensign-House in accordance with the Zoning 

Commission Approval and plans to be submitted and approved by the State Historic Preservation 

Office (“SHPO”); (b) add significant and substantial improvements to the Real Property through 

the construction of 31 new apartment units, and (c) install and/or add taxable personal property 

assets, such as office and business equipment; and 

 WHEREAS, the Town is the grantee of a certain Declaration of Preservation Restriction 

recorded in Volume 292, Page 446 of the Simsbury Land Records; and 

 WHEREAS, the Town wishes to assist Company in its plans to preserve the historic 

Ensign House and to add combined real property and personal property value to the Town’s tax 

base; and  

 WHEREAS, as a means of preserving the Ensign House, the Town wishes to assist 

Company to develop the residential development known as the “Ensign House at Chestnut Hill” 

according to the plans submitted and approved under the Zoning Commission Approval. 



3 
 
1107907 

 WHEREAS, in consideration of the above, the Town is willing to provide tax relief to 

Company pursuant to Chapter 203 of the Connecticut General Statutes for a period of seven (7) 

years commencing with the first date that tax payments are due under the Grand List following 

the date of issuance of the Certificate of Occupancy for the Facility (the “Abatement Term”); and 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, the parties hereby covenant and 

agree that: 

 1. Preservation of the Ensign House:  Company shall preserve the Ensign House by 

an adaptive reuse project to create seven (7) apartment units in accordance with the Zoning 

Commission Approval and a plan that meets the standards established and approved by the 

SHPO and subject to the Easements, Declarations of Covenants, and Declaration of Preservation 

of Restrictions as may be required by SHPO as well as construct additional improvements to the 

Real Property including 31 new apartment units and related site improvements (collectively, the 

“Improvements”).  

 2. Cost of Improvements:  The costs for the improvements shall equal or exceed 

$________________.  Company will install and properly account to the Town for all taxable 

personal property assets added to or installed in the Facility. 

 3. Certificate of Occupancy:  Company anticipates it will receive a Certificate of 

Occupancy for the Facility on or about_____________, 2016, and shall actively operate or cause 

said Facility to operate as apartments at the Real Property for no less than the ten (10) year 

Operating Term from the date of the Certificate of Occupancy.  



4 
 
1107907 

 4. Employment:  Company shall use its best efforts to employ or cause to be 

employed at least ___ full-time and ____ part-time employees at said Facility throughout the 

Operating Term. 

 5. Reduction of Assessment:  Commencing with the Certificate of Occupancy, the 

Grand List for the period following the issuance of the Certificate of Occupancy for the Facility, 

the Town shall grant to Company a ____% reduction in its real property assessment such that the 

net effect of the reduced assessment reduces the property tax liability for the Property in the 

amount of $_______________ over the seven (7) year period according to a schedule attached 

hereto as Exhibit A for the Real Property, including the above-described Improvements and the 

construction of the Facility (the “Abatement”).    

 6. Abatement Period:  The Abatement Term shall be for a period of seven (7) years 

commencing with the first date that tax payments are due under the Grand List following the date 

of issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for the Facility; provided, however, that if such 

assessment is changed by any future Town revaluation, the tax payments due under the new 

assessed value of the Real Property shall be adjusted for the remainder of the Abatement Term in 

accordance with the terms of the Abatement set forth in Paragraph 5. 

 7. Tax Payment:  Company shall maintain all tax obligations owed by it to the Town 

current and in good standing during the Operating Term. 

 8. Certification of Value of Site Improvements:  Company shall be required to 

provide proof via affidavit of an appropriate officer within one year after the commencement of 

operations at the Facility as to a) the actual value of the site improvements and that said 

improvements are substantially in conformance with the provisions hereof as to the scope of 



5 
 
1107907 

construction; b) the cost of construction (a minimum of $________________.00) and c) the 

number and type (full time or part time) of employees employed at such Facility. 

 9. Ongoing Employment Obligations:  Notwithstanding anything herein contained to 

the contrary, Company and the Town acknowledge and agree that, while Company shall make 

every good faith effort to maintain and employ at least __ full-time and ___ part-time employees 

during the Operating Term, economic circumstances, financial considerations, and employee 

transience may make it impossible to maintain precisely the level of employment described 

herein.  Accordingly, Company and the Town acknowledge that variations in the numbers of 

employees will occur and may continue for unspecified periods of time during the Operating 

Term of this Agreement.  Company will, upon request, disclose to Town its employment 

statistics no more than once per year.  Subject to the above requirement of good faith and 

Company’s cooperation in disclosing all efforts made to comply with the employment 

parameters stated herein, such variations shall not otherwise constitute a default of this 

Agreement provided the Facility is operating in accordance with applicable law and Company is 

in compliance with the terms of this Agreement in all other respects. 

 10.  Default:  In the event that Company does not perform any obligation set forth in 

this Agreement, specifically including the Conditions set forth in Paragraph 23 herein, for a 

period of at least thirty (30) days (or such longer period if the failure to perform is not reasonably 

corrected within such 30 days) following the postmark date of written notice of such 

nonperformance from the Town to Company or if Company otherwise breaches the terms of this 

Agreement, then Company shall be deemed to be in default of this Agreement.  In the event of 

such default, this Agreement shall be null and void and the Company shall reimburse the Town 



6 
 
1107907 

for all tax relief provided to Company, its predecessors and/or its assigns and the Town shall be 

under no obligation to grant further tax relief hereunder.   

 11. Legal Action to Enforce the Terms:  In the event that the Town must resort to 

legal action to enforce the terms of this Agreement, any amount determined by a Court of 

competent jurisdiction to be due from Company shall be subject to interest at the rate of eighteen 

percent (18%) per annum.  Such interest shall accrue from thirty (30) days, or such longer period 

if the default were not able to be cured within 30 days, following the postmark date for the notice 

of default described in Paragraph 10.  In addition, the Town shall be entitled to recover from 

Company all costs of collection, including reasonable attorney's fees, incurred in enforcing this 

Agreement.  

 12. No Further Abatement:  Company acknowledges and agrees that the Abatement 

offered pursuant to this Agreement is not binding upon the Town beyond the seven-year 

Abatement Term agreed to herein. 

 13. No Admission as to Values:  Company and the Town acknowledge and agree that 

the values placed upon the Real Property, the Facility, and/or the Improvements as a result of the 

Abatement shall not now or at any other time be construed as an admission by any party or as 

evidence of any kind as to the true fair market value of the Real Property, the Facility, and/or the 

Improvements.   

 14. Notices:  All notices hereunder are to be sent by the Town to Company at the 

following address or to such other address as requested by Company or its successors or assigns: 

Company:  Chestnut Hill Associates, LLC, 8 Plank Hill Road, Simsbury, CT 06070 Attention: 

Arnold C. Sholovitz, Esq..  All such notices shall be sent via certified mail, return receipt 



7 
 
1107907 

requested, or overnight mail service.  Notices are deemed effective upon delivery .  Any refusal 

to accept such delivery shall still constitute the delivery of proper notice. 

 15. Assignment:  Company may not assign or otherwise transfer its rights or 

obligations under this Agreement without the prior written authorization of the Town.  

 16. Release of Liability:  Company and/or its successors or assigns releases the Town 

and its agents, servants and employees from any and all liability, of whatever nature, legal or 

equitable, which may have arisen or which may arise in connection with this Agreement, 

including the implementation hereof. 

 17. Indemnification:  Company and/or its successors or assigns shall defend and 

indemnify the Town and any of its agents, servants and employees against any action, claim or 

suit of any nature whatsoever, arising from the Town’s being a party to this Agreement and/or 

any undertaking of its obligations hereunder. 

 18. Execution:  This Agreement has been executed by the parties' respective agents, 

duly authorized and acting in his or her official capacity. 

 19. Amendment:  This Agreement may be amended only by mutual consent of the 

parties, and any amendments to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be duly executed 

and dated by the respective parties. 

 20. Complete Agreement:  This Agreement represents the entire and complete 

understanding and agreement of the parties, and any and all prior written or oral agreements not 

otherwise contained in this Agreement shall be and are hereby null and void and of no force or 

effect. 



8 
 
1107907 

 21. Choice of Law and Venue :  In the event that litigation or other dispute resolution 

process arises, all litigation and dispute resolution shall take place in the State of Connecticut, 

Judicial District of Hartford, and the Agreement shall be construed in accordance with 

Connecticut law, without regard to its conflict of law provisions. 

 22.   Notice of Tax Abatement:  Upon the execution of this Agreement, a copy of this 

Agreement or a proper “Notice of Tax Abatement Agreement” shall be filed upon the land 

records of the Town with respect to the Real Property.  

 23.  Special Conditions:  In addition to all other terms and conditions of this 

Agreement, the Town’s obligations under this Agreement are conditioned on the following (“the 

Conditions”): 

  (a)  Project Financing:  Company demonstrates to the reasonable satisfaction of 

the Simsbury Finance Director that it has private financing and state and federal grants in place 

in an amount sufficient to undertake and complete the project; 

  (b)  Property Maintenance:  Company demonstrates that it has maintenance 

contracts in place to keep the property maintained during the period of construction; 

  (c)  Declaration of Preservation Restriction:  Company shall, in writing, 

acknowledge and affirm that the Declaration of Preservation Restrictions wherein the Town is 

the grantee as recorded in Volume 292, Page 446 of the Simsbury Land Records remains and 

shall continue in full force and effect; 

  (d)  Non-Transferable:  As set forth in Paragraph 15 herein, Company 

acknowledges and affirms that this tax abatement is non-transferable and any transfer of the tax 

abatement to a non-related entity shall be an event of default; and 



9 
 
1107907 

  (e)  Bankruptcy or Dissolution:  It shall be an event of default if the Company 

shall make a general assignment for the benefit of creditors; or an admission in writing of its 

inability to pay its debts as they become due; or a filing of a petition in bankruptcy, or its 

adjudication as a bankrupt or insolvent; or a filing of a petition seeking any reorganization, 

arrangement, composition, readjustment, liquidation, dissolution or similar relief under any 

present or future statute, Legal Requirements or regulation; or its filing of an answer admitting or 

not contesting the material allegations of the petition against it in any such proceeding; or seek or 

consent to or acquiescence in the appointment of any trustee, received or liquidator of Company 

or any material part of its properties. 

 In the event that the Company fails to satisfy the Conditions set forth in this Special 

Conditions paragraph, this Agreement shall be null and void and the Real Property as improved 

shall be assessed in accordance with the Connecticut General Statutes without regard to the terms 

and conditions of this Agreement. 

 24. Code of Ethics:  The Company acknowledges and agrees that the Simsbury Code 

of Ethics, Code of Ordinances Chapter 13, shall be incorporated into this Agreement by 

reference as if fully set forth herein and that the Company, its officers, agents and employees 

shall be subject to the provisions thereof as they may apply. 

 

 

SIGNATURES FOLLOW 

 



 

  Town of Simsbury 
 
933 HOPMEADOW STREET  P.O. BOX 495  SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT 06070 
              

 
 

 
BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING 

AGENDA SUBMISSION FORM 
 
 

1.  Title of submission:  Proposed Eagle Scout Project – Recommendation for 
Approval 
 
  

2.  Date of submission:  October 21, 2015  
 
 

3.  Date of Board Meeting: October 26, 2015 
 
 

4.  Individual or Entity making the submission (Please include complete contact 
information.  The identified individual(s) should be prepared to present information 
to the Board of Selectmen at the Board Meeting): 
 
Gerard G. Toner, Director of Culture, Parks and Recreation 
 
 

5.  Action requested of the Board of Selectmen (Acceptance of gift, creation of 
reserve, approval of contract, information only, etc.  Be as specific as possible 
with respect to the desired action of the Board.): 
The Individual or Entity making the submission requests that the Board of Selectmen: 
 
Approve the proposed Eagle Scout project of Justin Bush.  
 
 

6.  Summary of Submission (Include in your summary (i) relevant dates and 
timelines; (ii) parties involved; (iii) a description of financial terms and conditions 
specifically identifying the financial exposure/commitment of the Town of 
Simsbury; (iv) whether or not contracts, licenses and other legal documents have 
been reviewed by the Town’s counsel; and (v) other information that will inform the 
Board of Selectmen’s consideration of your submission.  Include any additional 
information in an attached memorandum.): 

 
At their regular meeting on October 7, the Open Space Committee received a presentation 
from Justin Bush on a prospective Eagle Scout community project. 
 
 



The proposed project is the construction and installation of wayfinding signage and trail re-
blazing in the town owned Ethel Walker Woods Open Space.  The signage is consistent 
with the recommendations of Milone and MacBroom in their report to the Town. 
 
The Committee was very impressed with the nature of the project and the quality of the 
presentation.  They voted unanimously to recommend this project to the Board of 
Selectmen for final approval.  At their special meeting on October 29, the Culture, Parks 
and Recreation Commission also unanimously recommended this project for approval by 
the Board of Selectmen.   
 

 
   

7.  Financial Impact (Include a description of any impact on the finances of the 
Town of Simsbury): 
 
The project is an enhancement to our park and open space system. It will only have a 
positive financial impact. 
 
 

8.  Description of documents included with submission (All documents must be in 
final form and signed by the appropriate party.): 
 The following documents are included with this submission and attached hereto: 
 
Meeting minutes from October 7 Open Space Committee meeting – page 1. 
 
Meeting minutes from October 29 Culture, Parks and Recreation Commission meeting. 
 
Project summary will be distributed at the meeting by Justin Bush 
 
 
 



OPEN SPACE COMMITTEE – SUBJECT TO APPROVAL 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES – OCTOBER 7, 2015          P a g e  | 1 

  

CALL TO ORDER 1 

First Selectman Lisa Heavner called the regular meeting of the Open Space Committee 2 

to order at 4:30 PM on Wednesday, October 7, 2015. The meeting was held in the main 3 

meeting room of the Simsbury Town Offices located at 933 Hopmeadow Street, 4 

Simsbury, CT. In attendance were the following committee members: Ferg Jansen, 5 

Helen Peterson and Don Rieger. Staff included Gerard Toner, Director of Culture, Parks 6 

and Recreation; Town Engineer Jeff Shea and Town Attorney Robert DeCrescenzo. 7 

 8 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 9 

All stood for the Pledge of Allegiance.  10 

 11 

PUBLIC AUDIENCE 12 

No one spoke at pubic audience.  13 

 14 

REVIEW/ADOPT MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 2, 2015   15 

Line 75 was changed from “Ms. Heaver” to “Ms. Heavner.” 16 

 17 

EAGLE SCOUT PRESENTATION -- ETHEL WALKER WOODS PROJECT 18 

Justin Bush of Troop 175 presented his proposed Eagle Scout Project to install multiple 19 

trail signs and re-blaze trails on the Ethel Walker Woods property. The property has had 20 

some trail blazing performed but many of the blazes are worn and faded. Bush would 21 

also make wayfinding signs. Both will give users confidence as to what trail he or she is 22 

on and how they interconnect. He said he thought he would install 6 to 8 signs. He 23 

would use the consultant’s report and the consultant as a guide, as well as consulting 24 

with Gerry Toner, director of parks and recreation.  25 

 26 

There was discussion on color and types of blazes or possibly revising the color scheme 27 

or adding maps. Bush told the commissioners he hopes to get the posts in before the 28 

winter.   29 

 30 

There was discussion on next steps, the approval process and the deadline for the 31 

Scout’s project, which is in March.  32 

 33 

Mr. Rieger moved that the project be approved, contingent on working closely with the 34 

appropriate town staff and consultant. It was seconded by Ms. Peterson and passed 35 

unanimously. It was noted that the project approval is subject to approval by the Boy 36 

Scouts.  37 

 38 

martin
Highlight

martin
Highlight



 

  Town of  Simsbury 
 
933 HOPMEADOW STREET  P.O. BOX 495  SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT 06070 
 

                             Culture, Parks and Recreation 

 

Telephone  (860) 658-3255 
Facsimile   (860) 408-9283 

 
www.simsbury-ct.gov 

An Equal Opportunity Employer  
8:30 - 4:30  Monday through Friday 

 

 
 
Culture, Parks and Recreation Commission Meeting  
October 29, 2015 
 
 
Eagle Scout Presentation – Justin Bush 
 
 
 
Justin Bush distributed a 12-page report to the commission to explain his Eagle Scout 
project. He is proposing installing trail signs and updating blazes on seven trails—
blue, orange, yellow, green, white, red, and purple—within the Ethel Walker Woods 
open space property. Currently, there are no trail signs, and the blazes are either 
faded or confusing. This project was identified by a town consultant as a way to make 
the trails more accessible to the public. Justin recently made a presentation to the 
Open Space Committee, at which his project was unanimously approved. They recommended 
that he consider using plastic blazing markers instead of paint. While this option 
would be more permanent, it would be cost prohibitive. It would also require nailing, 
which could cause tree damage. Instead, he is proposing using paint to blaze the 
trails and using a town vendor to make wood signs with trail names and direction 
arrows, painted in the color of each trail. He will raise funds for this project 
through car washes and refundable can collections. He is hoping to start before the 
first frost, and complete the project by next spring. Mr. Wetjen made a motion to 
approve Justin Bush’s Eagle Scout project. Ms. Cramer seconded the motion. Except for 
Mr. Bush’s abstention (as Justin’s father), all were in favor. The motion passed. 
Justin will make a subsequent presentation to the Board of Selectman.
 



 

  Town of Simsbury 
 
933 HOPMEADOW STREET  P.O. BOX 495  SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT 06070 
              

 
 

 
BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING 

AGENDA SUBMISSION FORM 
 
 

1.  Title of submission:  Proposed Creation of a Friends of Simsbury Farms 501-C-3 Non-
Profit Organization 
 
  

2.  Date of submission:  November 2, 2015   
 
 

3.  Date of Board Meeting: November 9, 2015 
 
 

4.  Individual or Entity making the submission (Please include complete contact 
information.  The identified individual(s) should be prepared to present information 
to the Board of Selectmen at the Board Meeting): 
 
 
Gerard G. Toner, Director of Culture, Parks and Recreation 
 
 
 

5.  Action requested of the Board of Selectmen (Acceptance of gift, creation of 
reserve, approval of contract, information only, etc.  Be as specific as possible 
with respect to the desired action of the Board.): 
The Individual or Entity making the submission requests that the Board of Selectmen: 
 
Approve the creation of the Friends of Simsbury Farms, a 501-C-3 non-profit organization 
intended to plan, form, coordinate, and monitor charitable donations for the benefit of the 
Simsbury Farms Recreation Complex. 
 
 

6.  Summary of Submission (Include in your summary (i) relevant dates and timelines; 
(ii) parties involved; (iii) a description of financial terms and conditions specifically 
identifying the financial exposure/commitment of the Town of Simsbury; (iv) 
whether or not contracts, licenses and other legal documents have been reviewed 
by the Town’s counsel; and (v) other information that will inform the Board of 
Selectmen’s consideration of your submission.  Include any additional information 
in an attached memorandum.): 

 
At the July 23 Culture, Parks and Recreation Commission meeting, Gerry Wetjen 
introduced the concept of creating a non-profit organization to administer donations 



toward improvements at the Simsbury Farms Recreation Complex.  Mr. Wetjen created a 
proposed Mission Statement and By-Laws for the organization that were distributed to 
the Commission for their review and input.  Over the next two months, both the Mission 
Statement and By-Laws were refined based on the recommendations of the Commission.   
 
At their September 24 meeting, the Commission unanimously voted to recommend to the 
Board of Selectmen the creation of the Friends of Simsbury Farms organization, 
contingent upon the approval of Town Attorney Robert Decrescenzo.  Attorney 
Decrescenzo has reviewed the documents and approved them for submission to the 
Board of Selectmen. 
 
   

7.  Financial Impact (Include a description of any impact on the finances of the Town 
of Simsbury): 
 
Since the intent of the organization is the administration of donations to the Complex, it 
should have a positive financial impact to the Town. 
 
 

8.  Description of documents included with submission (All documents must be in 
final form and signed by the appropriate party.): 
 The following documents are included with this submission and attached hereto: 
 
 
Proposed Friends of Simsbury Farms Mission Statement 
Proposed Friends of Simsbury Farms BY-Laws  



The Friends of Simsbury Farms 

Mission Statement 

The Friends of Simsbury Farms believes that the cultural and recreational opportunities provided the 
Simsbury Farms Recreation Complex provides a necessary service and Recreation Facility by the Town 
of Simsbury.   

The function of this Entity will be to provide financial assistance the Culture, Parks and Recreation 
Department in the areas of enhancements of the Recreation Complex for its users.  In order to make 
effective recommendations, the Board of Directors of the Friends of Simsbury Farms shall work with and 
obtain detailed information on an ongoing basis from the Culture Parks and Recreation Department as to 
its needs for enhancing recreational activities and facilities at the Complex. The purpose of this 
organization is not to assume those financial responsibilities normally funded through the Recreation 
Department’s and Town Budgets but to assist the Recreation Department when a need arises which would 
not be available through the normal budgeting process.  

Policy and Purpose Statement 

1. The Board of Directors of Friends of Simsbury Farms (Friends of the Farms) is to be appointed by the 

Simsbury Culture Parks and Recreation Commission who will have oversight of the activities of Friends 

of the Farms. The Board shall consist of seven (7) members who shall elect its officers.  

2. The Purpose of Friends of the Farms is to provide a means by which citizens can make charitable 

donations or bequests to fund either capital or programing needs for the Farms, which would not normally 

be available through the Town of Simsbury’s Budgeting for the Simsbury Farms Recreation Complex. 

2.  New areas of proposed funding will be reviewed by the Board of Directors while in their proposal 

stage in order for the BOD to have input into these proposals. The Town of Simsbury Director of 

Recreation with the approval and support of the Town’s Culture Park and Recreation Commission shall 

provide all suggestions for consideration. 

3. The Friends of the Farms will have sub-committees reporting to it, composed of members with specific 
interest in the area the sub-committee addresses. There will be both Department personnel and 
Commission liaisons on these sub-committees.  The BOD will establish guidelines for these committees 
and will review them periodically as to the current need and function.  These sub-committees will provide 
input to the BOD on their specific areas. 

5.  There will be an ongoing study to review capital improvements and expenditures relative to cultural 

and recreational needs of the Complex.  The Culture, Parks and Recreation Director will furnish the 

necessary information to the BOD. Priority recommendations will be reevaluated for the budget process 

each year.  When warranted, individual recommendations will be made to the Board of Selectmen. 

Fund Raising 

The Friends of the Farms seeks to provide financial assistance to the Simsbury Farms Recreation 
Complex. Recreation is recognized as necessary service to the community and an integral part of 
Simsbury's health and welfare.  

The Friends of the Farms will set up a 501(c) (3) Non-Profit Corporation with assistance from the Town 
of Simsbury and its Staff. (Subject to approval of the Internal Revenue Service) 

The Corporation will seek and accept charitable contributions and/or bequests for the purpose of 
enhancing the facilities and/or programs of the facility. 

NOTE: A Master Plan for the Infrastructure needs of the Complex was implemented and completed in 
2013. This plan only dealt with infrastructure and omitted other needs of the facility. In the 2015-2016 
Fiscal Year the taxpayers approved addition capital improvements for the Ice Rink and Tennis Courts, 
which were not dealt with in the Facility’s Master Plan. Additional Funding had been requested in the 
Town’s 6 year Capital Plan to expand the Golf Course Restaurant, fund needed capital improvements for 



the Golf Course as well as the Reconstruction of the Apple Barn. These as well as Normal Capital Needs 
of the Facility will not be items for consideration by the Friends of the Farms. 

The Culture, Parks and Recreation Department provide the following basic services to the 
townspeople through its operating budget. (These are services, which will not be funded by the 
Friends of the Farms.) 

1. Year round recreation programs available to all segments of the population, seeking to provide positive 
leisure experiences for each participant. 

2. A system of parks and recreational facilities maintained and prepared for recreational level use and a 
continually updated capital improvement plan outlining the acquisition and development of park areas and 
facilities for municipal use. 

3. Maintenance of all school athletics fields. 

4. Qualified administrative, supervisory, and maintenance staff to administer Department's operations. 

The Friends of Simsbury Farms will consider funding for the following activities at the Simsbury 
Farms Recreation Facility: 

1.  Golf Course and its confines. 

2.  Skating Rink   

3.  Tennis / Paddle Tennis  

4.  Swimming Pools  

5.  Fitness Trail  

6. Additional Activities recommended by the Town of Simsbury’s Culture Parks and Recreation 
Commission. 

 



Friends of Simsbury Farms 

BYLAWS 

 

ARTICLE I: NAME AND PURPOSES 

Section 1: The name of this organization is the Friends of Simsbury Farms, Inc. 

Section 2: The purposes of the organization is to plan, form, coordinate, and monitor Charitable 
Donations and/or Bequests for the benefit of the Simsbury Farms Recreation Complex. 

ARTICLE II:  MEMBERSHIP  

Section 1: As per the Organization’s Articles of Incorporation the Board of Directors shall be composed 
of seven (7) members who shall be appointed by the Town of Simsbury’s Culture Parks and Recreation 
Commission. 

Section 2: If any vacancy occurs on the BOD during the term of any Director, said vacancy shall be filled 
by the CPR Commission for the remainder of said term 

Section 3: All BOD appointments shall be consistent with the Minority Representation Statute, Section 9-
167A of the Connecticut General Statutes as amended. 

ARTICLE III: OFFICERS 

Section 1: The Board of Directors shall consist of a Chairman and a Vice-Chairman as well as a member 
of the Culture Parks and Recreation Commission and (4) other members recommended by the Culture 
Parks and Recreation Commission. The Board of Directors will appoint a Secretary and Treasurer who 
will be officers of the Corporation. 

Section 2: The officers shall be elected by the BOD itself at the January meeting and shall hold office for 
three years. 

Section 3: If any vacancy shall occur, the office shall be filled by election of the BOD as a whole. 

ARTICLE IV: DUTIES OF THE OFFICERS 

Section 1: The Chairman shall preside over all the meetings of the BOD and shall be the executive officer 
of the organization.  He/She shall represent the BOD before the public, either personally or through 
delegates, and shall perform all other functions usually attributed to that office. The Secretary shall insure 
that proper notices of meetings are communicated to the Directors and Town. 

Section 2: The Vice-Chairman, in the absence of the Chairman, shall preside over meetings of the BOD 
and assume other executive functions usually attributed to a Vice-Chairman. 

Section 3: A Recording Secretary (an officer of the entity) shall insure that accurate minutes of all BOD 
meetings are kept.  The Recording Secretary shall insure that a log of organization’s minutes is kept and 
will insure that all BOD members are provided copies of the minutes.  The Recording Secretary shall 
further see that such minutes are duly filed with Town agencies and officials as necessary.  

Section 4: The Board will appoint a Treasurer (an officer of the entity) to account for all funds received 
and/or disbursed by The Friends of Simsbury Farms. 

Section 5: The Board will adopt policies for receipt and expenditures of all funds entrusted to its care to 
include an annual financial audit. 
 



ARTICLE V:  MEETINGS 

Section 1: Regularly scheduled meetings of the Commission shall be held at least on a quarterly basis. 
The Chairman or a majority of the members of the Board to conduct necessary business may call 
additional meetings. 

Section 2: Meetings shall start at 7:30 p.m.  The public is invited to address the Directors on any topic 
related to the organization's purposes at the start of every meeting.  Such time shall be limited to thirty 
(3O) minutes unless the Board agrees to extend such time. 

ARTICLE VI: COMMITTEES 

 Section 1: Advisory Committees to the Board may consist of such committees as may be determined by 
the BOD including, but not limited, to the following: 

1. Simsbury Farms Complex 

2. Golf Course  

 Section 2: All Advisory Committees shall report, as necessary, to the Board as a whole. 

Section 4:  Advisory Committees shall be solely advisory in nature and shall be approved and appointed 
by the Board as a whole.  Such Advisory Committees shall serve until, in the opinion of the Board, the 
purpose of the Advisory Committee is accomplished. 

ARTICLE VII: AMENDMENTS  

Section 1: The By-Laws may be amended by at least two thirds vote of the members present at any 
regular meeting of the Board, provided that proposed amendments have been previously studied by the 
Board and that copies of such amendments have been sent to each member of the Board at least two 
calendar weeks in advance of a publicized meeting for the expressed purpose of bringing about an 
amendment. 

 ARTICLE VIII: QUORUM 

Section 1: At least four (4) members of the Board must be in attendance at an official meeting to satisfy 
the aspects of a quorum. 

ARTICLE IX: AUTHORITY 

Section 1: Robert's Rules of Order shall be the parliamentary authority for the Board on all procedures not 
covered by the By-Laws and such standing rules as the Commission may adopt. 

Section II: The Town of Simsbury’s Director of Parks and Recreation shall have oversight on the Board 
and its actions and shall report activities of the Friends of Simsbury Farms to the Town’s Board of 
Selectmen. 



 

  Town of Simsbury 
 
933 HOPMEADOW STREET  P.O. BOX 495  SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT 06070 
              

 
 

 
BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING 

AGENDA SUBMISSION FORM 
 
 

1.  Title of submission:  Accept a Donation From Peter Dumont for Video Equipment 
for Use at the Simsbury Farms Ice Rink   
 
  

2.  Date of submission:  November 4, 2015  
 
 

3.  Date of Board Meeting: November 9, 2015 
 
 

4.  Individual or Entity making the submission (Please include complete contact 
information.  The identified individual(s) should be prepared to present information 
to the Board of Selectmen at the Board Meeting): 

 
Gerard G. Toner, Director of Culture, Parks and Recreation 
 
 

5.  Action requested of the Board of Selectmen (Acceptance of gift, creation of 
reserve, approval of contract, information only, etc.  Be as specific as possible 
with respect to the desired action of the Board.): 
The Individual or Entity making the submission requests that the Board of Selectmen: 
 
Accept the donation from Peter Dumont of a television and related media equipment for 
use by the youth hockey and high school ice teams.  The equipment would allow for the 
teams to view training videos provided by USA Hockey and other organizations.  The 
total value of the donation is $900.00 
 
 
 

6.  Summary of Submission (Include in your summary (i) relevant dates and 
timelines; (ii) parties involved; (iii) a description of financial terms and conditions 
specifically identifying the financial exposure/commitment of the Town of 
Simsbury; (iv) whether or not contracts, licenses and other legal documents have 
been reviewed by the Town’s counsel; and (v) other information that will inform the 
Board of Selectmen’s consideration of your submission.  Include any additional 
information in an attached memorandum.): 

 
 
 



Peter Dumont is a resident of Simsbury and a coach in the Simsbury Youth Hockey 
Association.  He approached the Department about the possibility of donating a TV and 
related media equipment for use at the Simsbury Farms Ice Rink.  The equipment would 
allow coaches to show training videos to their teams.  The use of this type of equipment 
is often used in other rinks. 
 
The Town’s Data Processing Manager Rick Bazzano met with Mr. Dumont, Recreation 
Supervisor John Thibeault and me to discuss this installation.  Rick  approved the 
installation since the wireless guest network is outside of the Town’s network and does 
not pose a security risk. 
 
   

7.  Financial Impact (Include a description of any impact on the finances of the 
Town of Simsbury): 

 
Mr. Dumont will assume the cost of the equipment and installation and there will not be 
any added cost to the Town. 
 
  
 

8.  Description of documents included with submission (All documents must be in 
final form and signed by the appropriate party.): 
 The following documents are included with this submission and attached hereto: 
 
 
N.A. 

































































 

  Town of Simsbury 
 
933 HOPMEADOW STREET  P.O. BOX 495  SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT 06070 
              

 
 

 
BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING 

AGENDA SUBMISSION FORM 
 
 

1.  Title of submission: Fiscal year 2015 Transfers  
 
  

2.  Date of submission:    11/5/2015 
 
 

3.  Date of Board Meeting: 11/9/2015 
 
 

4.  Individual or Entity making the submission : Joseph Mancini Director of Finance 
 
 

5.  Action requested of the Board of Selectmen – Four separate approvals for Year end 
transfers.  

a. Fiscal year 2015 General Fund Cleanup 
b. Simsbury Farms Deficit Cleanup for Fiscal 2015 
c. Funding of the next revaluation 
d. CNR transfer as approved during the fiscal year 2016 budget 

 
 

6.  Summary of Submission –  
a. The fiscal year 2015 budget transfers covers all the expenditures that are currently 

in the general fund. On the expenditure side the town is coming in favorable 
$107,862. The Board of Selectman has already approved two earlier 
appropriations of $400,000 for the pension plans and $70,000 for heart and 
hypertension. Revenue is currently favorable $725,000, mostly due to tax 
favorability in tax collections and building department fees.  

b. The board of finance would like to discuss the funding the fiscal year 2015 deficit 
at Simsbury farms, for fiscal 15 the deficit will be slightly under $60,000. For 
comparison purposes, in fiscal 14 Simsbury Farms operating deficit was $187,000. 

c. The Board of Finance would like the ability to discuss transferring up to $270,000 
in order to fund, in its entirety, the next revaluation.  

d. During the Fiscal Year 2016 budget process, a decision was made to fund 
$83,550 from the project favorability of fiscal 15 to reduce the fiscal 16 Capital 
Non-Recurring.  

 
   

7.  Financial Impact -  This is consistent with the Board of Finance Fund Balance Policy 
and will continue the allow the town financial flexibility in future years.  



Supplemental Transfers

Simsbury Farms
Transfer To Transfer From

FY2015 Deficit 60,000$          
General Fund Balance 60,000$             

Funding of Next Revaluation Transfer To Transfer From
Revaluation 270,000$        
General Fund Balance 270,000$          

Budgeting CNR Transfer To Transfer From
Vehicle 83,550$          
General Fund Balance 83,550$             



General Fund Transfers for Fiscal 2015
BUDGET UNIT BUDGET UNIT    Title Account Account Title  Budget  YTD Expenses  Encumbrances  Fav / (Unfav)  Transfers in  Transfers out  Ending 

Balance 
10041110 CENTRAL ADMIN 51010 FULL-TIME 313,977        346,532                   -                           (32,555)             32,555             -                      -                   
10041110 CENTRAL ADMIN 51020 PART TIME 29,500          30,961                     -                           (1,461)               1,461               -                      -                   
10041110 CENTRAL ADMIN 51040 SEASONAL 7,000             4,942                       -                           2,058                -                   (2,058)                -                   
10041110 CENTRAL ADMIN 52200 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 5,000             18,084                     -                           (13,084)             13,084             -                      -                   
10041110 CENTRAL ADMIN 52400 ADVERTISING 5,000             3,936                       -                           1,064                -                   (1,064)                -                   
10041110 CENTRAL ADMIN 52432 SPECIAL ACTIVITIES -                 5,643                       -                           (5,643)               5,643               -                      -                   
10041110 CENTRAL ADMIN 52550 POSTAGE 2,700             3,726                       -                           (1,026)               1,026               -                      -                   
10041110 CENTRAL ADMIN 53100 OFFICE SUPPLIES 6,000             5,356                       -                           645                    -                   (645)                   -                   
10041110 CENTRAL ADMIN 57910 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 2,500             2,767                       -                           (267)                  267                   -                      -                   

Amount Sent From Other Departments Central Admin (50,270)            
371,677        421,947                   -                           (50,270)             54,036             (3,766)                -                   

10041120 ADMIN SERVICES 51400 EDUCATION REIMBURSEMENT 4,400             625                           -                           3,775                -                   (3,775)                -                   
10041120 ADMIN SERVICES 52110 CONSULTANT 30,000          4,811                       -                           25,189              -                   (25,189)              -                   
10041120 ADMIN SERVICES 52200 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES -                 -                            -                           -                    -                   
10041120 ADMIN SERVICES 52510 COPY & PRINTING SERVICES 5,000             8,861                       -                           (3,861)               3,861               -                      -                   
10041120 ADMIN SERVICES 54310 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 6,360             7,952                       -                           (1,592)               1,592               -                      -                   
10041120 ADMIN SERVICES 55310 TELEPHONE SERVICE 45,000          71,119                     -                           (26,119)             26,119             -                      -                   
10041120 ADMIN SERVICES 57400 CONFERENCES & EDUCATION 35,000          25,291                     -                           9,709                -                   (9,709)                -                   
10041120 ADMIN SERVICES 57800 TRAVEL 10,000          9,014                       -                           986                    -                   (986)                   -                   

Amount Sent to Other Departments Admin Services 8,089                 
135,760        127,672                   -                           8,089                31,571             (39,660)              -                   

10041210 BOS-COMMUNITY SERVICES 52432 SPECIAL ACTIVITIES 3,800             7,516                       -                           (3,716)               3,716               -                      
10041210 BOS-COMMUNITY SERVICES 56910 PUBLIC AGENCY SUPPORT 56,580          55,767                     -                           813                    -                   (813)                   -                   

Amount Sent From Other Departments BOS Community Services (2,903)              
60,380          63,283                     -                           (2,903)               3,716               (813)                   -                   

10041230 BOARD OF FINANCE 51020 PART TIME 2,000             1,899                       -                           101                    -                   (101)                   -                   
10041230 BOARD OF FINANCE 52400 ADVERTISING 2,500             7,539                       -                           (5,039)               5,039               -                      -                   
10041230 BOARD OF FINANCE 52510 COPY & PRINTING SERVICES 5,000             3,500                       -                           1,500                -                   (1,500)                -                   
10041230 BOARD OF FINANCE 52550 POSTAGE 500                115                           -                           385                    -                   (385)                   -                   
10041230 BOARD OF FINANCE 53100 OFFICE SUPPLIES 300                -                            -                           300                    -                   (300)                   -                   

Amount Sent From Other Departments Board of Finance (2,752)              -                      
10,300          13,052                     -                           (2,752)               5,039               (2,287)                -                   

10041312 LAND USE COMM 51020 PART TIME 5,000             7,970                       -                           (2,970)               2,970               -                      -                   
10041312 LAND USE COMM 52200 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES -                 -                            -                           -                    -                   -                      -                   
10041312 LAND USE COMM 52400 ADVERTISING 7,500             9,052                       -                           (1,552)               1,552               -                      -                   
10041312 LAND USE COMM 52510 COPY & PRINTING SERVICES 3,000             600                           -                           2,400                -                   (2,400)                -                   
10041312 LAND USE COMM 52550 POSTAGE 3,000             1,190                       -                           1,810                -                   (1,810)                -                   
10041312 LAND USE COMM 53100 OFFICE SUPPLIES 500                388                           -                           112                    -                   (112)                   -                   
10041312 LAND USE COMM 53105 TECH & PROGRAM SUPPLIES -                 -                            -                           -                    -                   -                      -                   
10041312 LAND USE COMM 57910 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 1,700             1,255                       -                           445                    -                   (445)                   -                   

Amount Sent to Other Departments Land Use Comm 245                     
20,700          20,455                     -                           245                    -                   (245)                   

10041317 ECON DVLMNT COMM 51020 PART TIME 900                818                           -                           82                      -                   (82)                      -                   
10041317 ECON DVLMNT COMM 52400 ADVERTISING 1,000             -                            -                           1,000                -                   (1,000)                -                   
10041317 ECON DVLMNT COMM 52550 POSTAGE -                 -                            -                           -                    -                   -                      -                   
10041317 ECON DVLMNT COMM 53100 OFFICE SUPPLIES 200                -                            -                           200                    -                   (200)                   -                   
10041317 ECON DVLMNT COMM 56910 PUBLIC AGENCY SUPPORT 49,000          54,000                     -                           (5,000)               5,000               -                      -                   
10041317 ECON DVLMNT COMM 57910 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS -                 -                            -                           -                    -                   -                      -                   

Amount Sent From Other DepartmentsEcon Dvlmnt (3,718)              -                      
51,100          54,818                     (3,718)               3,718               -                      

10041318 HISTORIC DIST COMM 51020 PART TIME 625                533                           -                           92                      -                   (92)                      -                   
10041318 HISTORIC DIST COMM 52400 ADVERTISING -                 -                            -                           -                    -                   -                      -                   
10041318 HISTORIC DIST COMM 52550 POSTAGE -                 -                            -                           -                    -                   -                      -                   
10041318 HISTORIC DIST COMM 53100 OFFICE SUPPLIES 150                -                            -                           150                    -                   (150)                   -                   
10041318 HISTORIC DIST COMM 53400 TRAFFIC CONTROL SUPPLIES 500                -                            -                           500                    -                   (500)                   -                   

Amount Sent to Other Departments Historic Dist Comm 742                     
1,275             533                           742                    -                   (742)                   



BUDGET UNIT BUDGET UNIT    Title Account Account Title  Budget  YTD Expenses  Encumbrances  Fav / (Unfav)  Transfers in  Transfers out  Ending 
Balance 

10041320 PUBLIC BLDG COMM 51020 PART TIME 600                1,114                       -                           (514)                  514                   -                      -                   
10041320 PUBLIC BLDG COMM 52550 POSTAGE 250                173                           -                           77                      -                   (77)                      -                   
10041320 PUBLIC BLDG COMM 53100 OFFICE SUPPLIES -                 14                             -                           (14)                    14                     -                      -                   

Amount Sent From Other Departments Public Building Comm (451)                 -                      
850                1,301                       -                           (451)                  528                   (77)                      -                   

10041411 BEAUTIFICATION 52550 POSTAGE 45                  59                             -                           (14)                    14                     -                      -                   
10041411 BEAUTIFICATION 53300 AGRICULTURAL SUPPLIES 4,000             3,936                       -                           64                      -                   (64)                      -                   
10041411 BEAUTIFICATION 54330 FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 120                429                           -                           (309)                  309                   -                      -                   
10041411 BEAUTIFICATION 55110 WATER CHARGES 550                271                           -                           279                    -                   (279)                   -                   

Amount Sent to Other Departments Beautification 742                     
4,715             4,695                       20                      323                   (343)                   -                   

-                   -                      
10041412 TOURISM 52400 ADVERTISING 100                -                            -                           100                    -                   (100)                   -                   
10041412 TOURISM 52510 COPY & PRINTING SERVICES 1,000             -                            -                           1,000                -                   (1,000)                -                   
10041412 TOURISM 52550 POSTAGE 150                -                            -                           150                    -                   (150)                   -                   
10041412 TOURISM 53100 OFFICE SUPPLIES 130                -                            -                           130                    -                   (130)                   -                   
10041412 TOURISM 53105 TECH & PROGRAM SUPPLIES 700                201                           -                           499                    -                   (499)                   -                   

Amount Sent to Other Tourism 1,779                 
2,080             201                           -                           1,879                -                   (1,879)                -                   

-                   -                      -                   
10041500 ELECTION ADMINISTRATION 51020 PART TIME 24,000          24,512                     -                           (512)                  512                   -                      -                   
10041500 ELECTION ADMINISTRATION 51090 REGISTRARS 47,540          52,550                     -                           (5,010)               5,010               -                      -                   
10041500 ELECTION ADMINISTRATION 51500 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION -                 451                           -                           (451)                  451                   -                      -                   
10041500 ELECTION ADMINISTRATION 52400 ADVERTISING 1,000             343                           -                           657                    -                   (657)                   -                   
10041500 ELECTION ADMINISTRATION 52510 COPY & PRINTING SERVICES 4,500             5,338                       -                           (838)                  838                   -                      -                   
10041500 ELECTION ADMINISTRATION 52550 POSTAGE 1,100             1,406                       -                           (306)                  306                   -                      -                   
10041500 ELECTION ADMINISTRATION 53100 OFFICE SUPPLIES 2,045             802                           -                           1,243                -                   (1,243)                -                   
10041500 ELECTION ADMINISTRATION 53920 PROGRAM SUPPLIES 900                1,470                       -                           (570)                  570                   -                      -                   
10041500 ELECTION ADMINISTRATION 54310 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 7,390             7,190                       -                           200                    -                   (200)                   -                   
10041500 ELECTION ADMINISTRATION 57400 CONFERENCES & EDUCATION 240                250                           -                           (10)                    10                     -                      -                   
10041500 ELECTION ADMINISTRATION 57800 TRAVEL 100                110                           -                           (10)                    10                     -                      -                   
10041500 ELECTION ADMINISTRATION 57910 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 120                110                           -                           10                      -                   (10)                      -                   

Amount Sent From Other Departments Elections Admin (5,597)              -                      
88,935          94,532                     -                           (5,597)               7,707               (2,110)                -                   

-                      
10041611 FINANCE DEPARTMENT 51010 FULL-TIME 325,231        292,976                   -                           32,255              -                   (32,255)              -                   
10041611 FINANCE DEPARTMENT 51030 OVERTIME -                 4,283                       -                           (4,283)               4,283               -                      -                   
10041611 FINANCE DEPARTMENT 51040 SEASONAL -                 3,647                       -                           (3,647)               3,647               -                      -                   
10041611 FINANCE DEPARTMENT 52200 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 10,000          9,048                       -                           952                    -                   (952)                   -                   
10041611 FINANCE DEPARTMENT 52400 ADVERTISING -                 -                            -                           -                    -                   -                      -                   
10041611 FINANCE DEPARTMENT 52510 COPY & PRINTING SERVICES 1,200             -                            -                           1,200                -                   (1,200)                -                   
10041611 FINANCE DEPARTMENT 52520 BANK FEES 2,400             466                           -                           1,934                -                   (1,934)                -                   
10041611 FINANCE DEPARTMENT 52550 POSTAGE 2,750             2,791                       -                           (41)                    41                     -                      -                   
10041611 FINANCE DEPARTMENT 53100 OFFICE SUPPLIES 3,000             2,957                       -                           43                      -                   (43)                      -                   
10041611 FINANCE DEPARTMENT 57910 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 390                640                           -                           (250)                  250                   -                      -                   

Amount Sent to Other Finance Department 28,164               
344,971        316,807                   28,164              8,221               (36,385)              -                   

-                   -                      
10041612 TAX DEPARTMENT 51010 FULL-TIME 86,437          86,151                     -                           286                    -                   (286)                   -                   
10041612 TAX DEPARTMENT 51020 PART TIME 30,530          36,931                     -                           (6,401)               6,401               -                      -                   
10041612 TAX DEPARTMENT 51030 OVERTIME -                 39                             -                           (39)                    39                     -                      -                   
10041612 TAX DEPARTMENT 51040 SEASONAL 3,800             3,228                       -                           572                    -                   (572)                   -                   
10041612 TAX DEPARTMENT 51140 BOND INSURANCE 190                183                           -                           7                        -                   (7)                        -                   
10041612 TAX DEPARTMENT 52200 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 26,000          31,952                     -                           (5,952)               5,952               -                      -                   
10041612 TAX DEPARTMENT 52400 ADVERTISING 460                383                           -                           78                      -                   (78)                      -                   
10041612 TAX DEPARTMENT 52510 COPY & PRINTING SERVICES 1,100             1,100                       -                           -                    -                   -                      -                   
10041612 TAX DEPARTMENT 52520 BANK FEES 3,300             2,838                       -                           462                    -                   (462)                   -                   
10041612 TAX DEPARTMENT 52550 POSTAGE 3,500             3,846                       -                           (346)                  346                   -                      -                   
10041612 TAX DEPARTMENT 53100 OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,000             714                           -                           286                    -                   (286)                   -                   
10041612 TAX DEPARTMENT 53105 TECH & PROGRAM SUPPLIES 1,000             624                           -                           376                    -                   (376)                   -                   
10041612 TAX DEPARTMENT 56210 FEES PAID TO STATE 5,650             5,648                       -                           2                        -                   (2)                        -                   
10041612 TAX DEPARTMENT 57910 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 250                310                           -                           (60)                    60                     -                      -                   

Amount Sent From Other Departments Tax (10,731)            -                      
163,217        173,948                   (10,731)             12,799             (2,068)                -                   

-                   -                      



BUDGET UNIT BUDGET UNIT    Title Account Account Title  Budget  YTD Expenses  Encumbrances  Fav / (Unfav)  Transfers in  Transfers out  Ending 
Balance 

10041613 ASSESSORS OFFICE 51010 FULL-TIME 142,571        142,570                   -                           1                        -                   (1)                        -                   
10041613 ASSESSORS OFFICE 51020 PART TIME 22,547          17,127                     -                           5,420                -                   (5,420)                -                   
10041613 ASSESSORS OFFICE 51040 SEASONAL 635                -                            -                           635                    -                   (635)                   -                   
10041613 ASSESSORS OFFICE 52200 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 18,410          23,470                     -                           (5,060)               5,060               -                      -                   
10041613 ASSESSORS OFFICE 52400 ADVERTISING 55                  29                             -                           26                      -                   (26)                      -                   
10041613 ASSESSORS OFFICE 52550 POSTAGE 1,425             1,049                       -                           376                    -                   (376)                   -                   
10041613 ASSESSORS OFFICE 53100 OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,300             737                           -                           563                    -                   (563)                   -                   
10041613 ASSESSORS OFFICE 54310 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 375                -                            -                           375                    -                   (375)                   -                   
10041613 ASSESSORS OFFICE 57910 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 545                681                           -                           (136)                  136                   -                      -                   

Amount Sent to Other Assessors Office 2,199                 
187,863        185,664                   2,199                5,196               (7,395)                -                   

-                   -                      
10041614 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 51010 FULL-TIME 147,895        104,332                   -                           43,563              -                   (43,563)              -                   
10041614 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 51030 OVERTIME 5,843             170                           -                           5,673                -                   (5,673)                -                   
10041614 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 52200 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 28,598          32,180                     -                           (3,582)               3,582               -                      -                   
10041614 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 52550 POSTAGE 50                  22                             -                           28                      -                   (28)                      -                   
10041614 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 53100 OFFICE SUPPLIES 200                363                           -                           (163)                  163                   -                      -                   
10041614 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 53105 TECH & PROGRAM SUPPLIES 3,000             3,446                       -                           (446)                  446                   -                      -                   
10041614 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 57910 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 570                389                           -                           181                    -                   (181)                   -                   
10041614 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 58560 TECHNICAL & PROGRAM EQUIP 13,000          13,358                     -                           (358)                  358                   -                      -                   

Amount Sent to Other Information Technology 44,897               
199,156        154,259                   -                           44,897              4,549               (49,446)              -                   

10041615 AUDIT SERVICES 52110 CONSULTANT 36,000          45,201                     -                           (9,201)               9,201               -                      -                   
Amount Sent From Other Departments Audit (9,201)              -                      

36,000          45,201                     (9,201)               9,201               -                      -                   

10041700 LEGAL SERVICES 52310 LEGAL FEES 181,000        176,035                   -                           4,965                -                   (4,965)                -                   
10041700 LEGAL SERVICES 52315 LABOR RELATIONS 25,000          57,217                     -                           (32,217)             32,217             -                      -                   

Amount Sent From Other Departments Legal Services (27,252)            -                      
206,000        233,252                   (27,252)             32,217             (4,965)                -                   

10041720 TOWN CLERK 51010 FULL-TIME 189,071        189,072                   -                           (1)                       1                       -                      -                   
10041720 TOWN CLERK 51020 PART TIME -                 -                            -                           -                    -                   -                      -                   
10041720 TOWN CLERK 51030 OVERTIME 500                109                           -                           391                    -                   (391)                   -                   
10041720 TOWN CLERK 52200 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 15,500          15,025                     -                           475                    -                   (475)                   -                   
10041720 TOWN CLERK 52400 ADVERTISING 144                -                            -                           144                    -                   (144)                   -                   
10041720 TOWN CLERK 52510 COPY & PRINTING SERVICES 7,385             6,252                       -                           1,133                -                   (1,133)                -                   
10041720 TOWN CLERK 52520 BANK FEES 110                117                           -                           (7)                       7                       -                      -                   
10041720 TOWN CLERK 52550 POSTAGE 2,600             2,927                       -                           (327)                  327                   -                      -                   
10041720 TOWN CLERK 53100 OFFICE SUPPLIES 500                315                           -                           185                    -                   (185)                   -                   
10041720 TOWN CLERK 54310 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 100                535                           -                           (435)                  435                   -                      -                   
10041720 TOWN CLERK 57910 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 340                400                           -                           (60)                    60                     -                      -                   

Amount Sent to Other Town Clerk 1,497                 
216,250        214,753                   -                           1,497                831                   (2,328)                -                   

10041740 REGIONAL PROBATE COURT 56910 PUBLIC AGENCY SUPPORT 2,104             2,104                       -                           -                    -                   -                      



BUDGET UNIT BUDGET UNIT    Title Account Account Title  Budget  YTD Expenses  Encumbrances  Fav / (Unfav)  Transfers in  Transfers out  Ending 
Balance 

10042110 POLICE DEPT 51010 FULL-TIME 3,331,393     3,331,234               -                           159                    -                   (159)                   
10042110 POLICE DEPT 51020 PART TIME 30,292          39,566                     -                           (9,274)               9,274               -                      
10042110 POLICE DEPT 51030 OVERTIME 148,336        202,082                   -                           (53,746)             53,746             -                      
10042110 POLICE DEPT 51031 OVERTIME TRAINING 59,770          36,561                     -                           23,209              -                   (23,209)              
10042110 POLICE DEPT 51035 OVERTIME BOWL W/ BADGES -                 7,043                       -                           (7,043)               7,043               -                      
10042110 POLICE DEPT 51040 SEASONAL 53,525          53,169                     -                           356                    -                   (356)                   
10042110 POLICE DEPT 51060 HOLIDAY PAY 154,578        148,875                   -                           5,703                -                   (5,703)                
10042110 POLICE DEPT 51070 LONGEVITY 6,475             5,775                       -                           700                    -                   (700)                   
10042110 POLICE DEPT 51080 SPECIAL DUTY -                 258                           -                           (258)                  258                   -                      
10042110 POLICE DEPT 51100 COLLECTIVE BARGAINING 53,820          47,505                     -                           6,315                -                   (6,315)                
10042110 POLICE DEPT 52200 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 47,125          44,558                     -                           2,567                -                   (2,567)                
10042110 POLICE DEPT 52400 ADVERTISING 500                500                           -                           -                    -                   -                      
10042110 POLICE DEPT 52410 INVESTIGATIONS 1,000             1,049                       -                           (49)                    49                     -                      
10042110 POLICE DEPT 52510 COPY & PRINTING SERVICES 1,000             818                           -                           182                    -                   (182)                   
10042110 POLICE DEPT 52550 POSTAGE 800                1,091                       -                           (291)                  291                   -                      
10042110 POLICE DEPT 52620 EQUIPMENT RENTALS 4,500             1,969                       -                           2,531                -                   (2,531)                
10042110 POLICE DEPT 53100 OFFICE SUPPLIES 4,300             4,642                       -                           (342)                  342                   -                      
10042110 POLICE DEPT 53105 TECH & PROGRAM SUPPLIES 24,000          18,868                     -                           5,132                -                   (5,132)                
10042110 POLICE DEPT 53435 BOWL W/BADGES ACTIVITIES -                 4,715                       -                           (4,715)               4,715               -                      
10042110 POLICE DEPT 53437 JAG VIOLENCE CRIME PREV -                 18,027                     -                           (18,027)             18,027             -                      
10042110 POLICE DEPT 53500 MEDICAL SUPPLIES 3,250             4,902                       -                           (1,652)               1,652               -                      
10042110 POLICE DEPT 53505 CHEMICAL & LAB SUPPLIES 400                -                            -                           400                    -                   (400)                   
10042110 POLICE DEPT 53700 CLOTHES & SAFETY SUPPLIES 7,125             11,238                     -                           (4,113)               4,113               -                      
10042110 POLICE DEPT 54310 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 40,220          36,648                     -                           3,572                -                   (3,572)                
10042110 POLICE DEPT 54320 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 20,000          15,476                     -                           4,524                -                   (4,524)                
10042110 POLICE DEPT 55260 GASOLINE 85,000          80,814                     -                           4,186                -                   (4,186)                
10042110 POLICE DEPT 55310 TELEPHONE SERVICE 24,000          16,117                     -                           7,883                -                   (7,883)                
10042110 POLICE DEPT 56910 PUBLIC AGENCY SUPPORT 18,230          17,830                     -                           400                    -                   (400)                   
10042110 POLICE DEPT 57910 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 1,680             1,540                       -                           140                    -                   (140)                   
10042110 POLICE DEPT 58560 TECHNICAL & PROGRAM EQUIP -                 -                            -                           -                    -                   -                      

Amount Sent From Other Departments Police Department (31,549)            -                      
4,121,319     4,152,868               -                           (31,549)             99,509             (67,960)              -                   

10042120 ANIMAL CONTROL 51010 FULL-TIME 50,367          50,367                     -                           (0)                       0                       -                      
10042120 ANIMAL CONTROL 51030 OVERTIME -                 257                           -                           (257)                  257                   -                      
10042120 ANIMAL CONTROL 52200 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 2,500             2,500                       -                           -                    -                   -                      
10042120 ANIMAL CONTROL 52400 ADVERTISING 200                67                             -                           133                    -                   (133)                   
10042120 ANIMAL CONTROL 52510 COPY & PRINTING SERVICES 400                390                           -                           10                      -                   (10)                      
10042120 ANIMAL CONTROL 52550 POSTAGE 575                48                             -                           527                    -                   (527)                   
10042120 ANIMAL CONTROL 53100 OFFICE SUPPLIES 50                  -                            -                           50                      -                   (50)                      
10042120 ANIMAL CONTROL 53105 TECH & PROGRAM SUPPLIES 400                305                           -                           95                      -                   (95)                      
10042120 ANIMAL CONTROL 53600 PARTS SUPPLIES 600                542                           -                           58                      -                   (58)                      
10042120 ANIMAL CONTROL 53700 CLOTHES & SAFETY SUPPLIES 300                102                           -                           198                    -                   (198)                   
10042120 ANIMAL CONTROL 56210 FEES PAID TO STATE 6,500             219                           -                           6,281                -                   (6,281)                
10042120 ANIMAL CONTROL 57400 CONFERENCES & EDUCATION 100                -                            -                           100                    -                   (100)                   
10042120 ANIMAL CONTROL 57910 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 50                  -                            -                           50                      -                   (50)                      

Amount Sent to Other Animal Control 7,245                 
62,042          54,797                     -                           7,245                257                   (7,502)                -                   

10042200 CIVIL PREPDNESS 53105 TECH & PROGRAM SUPPLIES 6,685             6,308                       -                           377                    -                   (377)                   
Amount Sent to Other Civil Prepdness 377                     

6,685             6,308                       -                           377                    -                   (377)                   -                   



BUDGET UNIT BUDGET UNIT    Title Account Account Title  Budget  YTD Expenses  Encumbrances  Fav / (Unfav)  Transfers in  Transfers out  Ending 
Balance 

10043110 DIR OF COMM DEVMNT 51010 FULL-TIME 159,610        162,764                   -                           (3,154)               3,154               -                      
10043110 DIR OF COMM DEVMNT 51040 SEASONAL -                 -                            -                           -                    -                   -                      
10043110 DIR OF COMM DEVMNT 52200 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 32,000          1,869                       -                           30,131              -                   (30,131)              
10043110 DIR OF COMM DEVMNT 52400 ADVERTISING 800                -                            -                           800                    -                   (800)                   
10043110 DIR OF COMM DEVMNT 52510 COPY & PRINTING SERVICES -                 -                            -                           -                    -                   -                      
10043110 DIR OF COMM DEVMNT 52550 POSTAGE -                 -                            -                           -                    -                   -                      
10043110 DIR OF COMM DEVMNT 53100 OFFICE SUPPLIES 100                121                           -                           (21)                    21                     -                      
10043110 DIR OF COMM DEVMNT 53105 TECH & PROGRAM SUPPLIES 350                -                            -                           350                    -                   (350)                   
10043110 DIR OF COMM DEVMNT 57910 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 1,700             1,844                       -                           (144)                  144                   -                      

Amount Sent to Other Dir of Comm Devmnt 27,961               
194,560        166,599                   -                           27,961              3,320               (31,281)              -                   

10043120 PLANNING DEPMNT 51010 FULL-TIME 158,332        133,879                   -                           24,453              -                   (24,453)              
10043120 PLANNING DEPMNT 51030 OVERTIME -                 -                            -                           -                    -                   -                      
10043120 PLANNING DEPMNT 52200 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 1,500             1,116                       -                           384                    -                   (384)                   
10043120 PLANNING DEPMNT 52510 COPY & PRINTING SERVICES 420                130                           -                           290                    -                   (290)                   
10043120 PLANNING DEPMNT 52550 POSTAGE 50                  -                            -                           50                      -                   (50)                      
10043120 PLANNING DEPMNT 53100 OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,000             515                           -                           485                    -                   (485)                   
10043120 PLANNING DEPMNT 57910 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 500                570                           -                           (70)                    70                     -                      

Amount Sent to Other Planning Depmnt 25,592               
161,802        136,210                   -                           25,592              70                     (25,662)              -                   

10043130 BUILDING DEPT 51010 FULL-TIME 143,402        143,732                   -                           (330)                  330                   -                      
10043130 BUILDING DEPT 51020 PART TIME 25,000          15,274                     -                           9,726                -                   (9,726)                
10043130 BUILDING DEPT 52200 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 8,000             22,444                     -                           (14,444)             14,444             -                      
10043130 BUILDING DEPT 52400 ADVERTISING 200                75                             -                           125                    -                   (125)                   
10043130 BUILDING DEPT 52510 COPY & PRINTING SERVICES 360                87                             -                           273                    -                   (273)                   
10043130 BUILDING DEPT 52520 BANK FEES 360                384                           -                           (24)                    24                     -                      
10043130 BUILDING DEPT 52550 POSTAGE 500                977                           -                           (477)                  477                   -                      
10043130 BUILDING DEPT 53100 OFFICE SUPPLIES 500                300                           -                           200                    -                   (200)                   
10043130 BUILDING DEPT 53105 TECH & PROGRAM SUPPLIES 500                -                            -                           500                    -                   (500)                   
10043130 BUILDING DEPT 54310 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE -                 -                            -                           -                    -                   -                      
10043130 BUILDING DEPT 54320 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 500                383                           -                           117                    -                   (117)                   
10043130 BUILDING DEPT 55260 GASOLINE 2,000             1,650                       -                           350                    -                   (350)                   
10043130 BUILDING DEPT 57910 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 400                248                           -                           152                    -                   (152)                   

Amount Sent From Other Departments Building Departments (3,832)              -                      
181,722        185,554                   -                           (3,832)               15,275             (11,443)              -                   



BUDGET UNIT BUDGET UNIT    Title Account Account Title  Budget  YTD Expenses  Encumbrances  Fav / (Unfav)  Transfers in  Transfers out  Ending 
Balance 

10043200 ENGINEERING DEPT 51010 FULL-TIME 103,499        106,706                   -                           (3,207)               3,207               -                      
10043200 ENGINEERING DEPT 51020 PART TIME 39,872          43,870                     -                           (3,998)               3,998               -                      
10043200 ENGINEERING DEPT 52110 CONSULTANT 16,000          13,304                     -                           2,696                -                   (2,696)                
10043200 ENGINEERING DEPT 52400 ADVERTISING 150                -                            -                           150                    -                   (150)                   
10043200 ENGINEERING DEPT 52510 COPY & PRINTING SERVICES 100                -                            -                           100                    -                   (100)                   
10043200 ENGINEERING DEPT 52550 POSTAGE 200                276                           -                           (76)                    76                     -                      
10043200 ENGINEERING DEPT 53100 OFFICE SUPPLIES 400                608                           -                           (208)                  208                   -                      
10043200 ENGINEERING DEPT 53105 TECH & PROGRAM SUPPLIES 935                768                           -                           167                    -                   (167)                   
10043200 ENGINEERING DEPT 53600 PARTS SUPPLIES 200                91                             -                           109                    -                   (109)                   
10043200 ENGINEERING DEPT 53900 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES -                 -                            -                           -                    -                   -                      
10043200 ENGINEERING DEPT 54310 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 1,155             955                           -                           200                    -                   (200)                   
10043200 ENGINEERING DEPT 54320 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 500                113                           -                           387                    -                   (387)                   
10043200 ENGINEERING DEPT 55260 GASOLINE 2,100             1,353                       -                           747                    -                   (747)                   
10043200 ENGINEERING DEPT 57910 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 954                1,677                       -                           (723)                  723                   -                      

Amount Sent From Other Departments Engineering (3,654)              -                      
166,065        169,719                   -                           (3,654)               8,211               (4,557)                -                   

10044100 PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN 51010 FULL-TIME 164,817        167,806                   -                           (2,989)               2,989               -                      
10044100 PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN 51030 OVERTIME -                 -                            -                           -                    -                   -                      
10044100 PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN 51040 SEASONAL 800                755                           -                           45                      -                   (45)                      
10044100 PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN 52110 CONSULTANT 5,000             3,458                       -                           1,543                -                   (1,543)                
10044100 PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN 52200 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 9,000             4,357                       -                           4,643                -                   (4,643)                
10044100 PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN 52400 ADVERTISING 950                304                           -                           646                    -                   (646)                   
10044100 PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN 52550 POSTAGE 750                502                           -                           248                    -                   (248)                   
10044100 PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN 53100 OFFICE SUPPLIES 850                1,066                       -                           (216)                  216                   -                      
10044100 PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN 53105 TECH & PROGRAM SUPPLIES 800                403                           -                           397                    -                   (397)                   
10044100 PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN 57910 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 1,375             1,030                       -                           345                    -                   (345)                   

Amount Sent to Other Public Works Admin 4,662                 
184,342        179,680                   -                           4,662                3,205               (7,867)                -                   

10044210 BLDGS & MNT ADMIN 51010 FULL-TIME 376,545        356,757                   -                           19,788              -                   (19,788)              
10044210 BLDGS & MNT ADMIN 51020 PART TIME 15,933          18,626                     -                           (2,693)               2,693               -                      
10044210 BLDGS & MNT ADMIN 51030 OVERTIME 23,175          30,519                     -                           (7,344)               7,344               -                      
10044210 BLDGS & MNT ADMIN 51040 SEASONAL 10,800          12,080                     -                           (1,280)               1,280               -                      
10044210 BLDGS & MNT ADMIN 52920 LAUNDRY SERVICE 3,000             2,999                       -                           1                        -                   (1)                        
10044210 BLDGS & MNT ADMIN 53105 TECH & PROGRAM SUPPLIES 2,000             2,599                       -                           (599)                  599                   -                      
10044210 BLDGS & MNT ADMIN 53200 BUILDING SUPPLIES 300                8,044                       17,610                    (25,354)             25,354             -                      
10044210 BLDGS & MNT ADMIN 54320 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 4,250             2,683                       -                           1,567                -                   (1,567)                
10044210 BLDGS & MNT ADMIN 55260 GASOLINE 11,550          10,583                     -                           967                    -                   (967)                   

Amount Sent From Other Departments Bldgs & Mnt Admin (14,974)            -                      
447,553        444,890                   17,610                    (14,947)             37,271             (22,324)              -                   

10044220 TOWN OFFICES 52350 CUSTODIAL SERVICES 1,250             -                            -                           1,250                -                   (1,250)                
10044220 TOWN OFFICES 53200 BUILDING SUPPLIES 7,400             8,750                       -                           (1,350)               1,350               -                      
10044220 TOWN OFFICES 53210 CLEANING SUPPLIES 5,750             5,028                       -                           722                    -                   (722)                   
10044220 TOWN OFFICES 54310 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 16,500          20,753                     -                           (4,253)               4,253               -                      
10044220 TOWN OFFICES 54330 FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 5,838             7,928                       -                           (2,090)               2,090               -                      
10044220 TOWN OFFICES 55110 WATER CHARGES 2,200             2,018                       -                           182                    -                   (182)                   
10044220 TOWN OFFICES 55120 SEWER USE FEES 1,910             1,910                       -                           0                        -                   (0)                        
10044220 TOWN OFFICES 55210 NATURAL GAS/PROPANE 45,000          16,350                     -                           28,650              -                   (28,650)              
10044220 TOWN OFFICES 55220 ELECTRIC 71,500          76,301                     -                           (4,801)               4,801               -                      
10044220 TOWN OFFICES 58220 BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS 4,575             6,078                       -                           (1,503)               1,503               -                      
10044220 TOWN OFFICES 58560 TECHNICAL & PROGRAM EQUIP 450                540                           -                           (90)                    90                     -                      

Amount Sent to Other Town Offices 16,717               
162,373        145,656                   -                           16,717              14,087             (30,804)              -                   



BUDGET UNIT BUDGET UNIT    Title Account Account Title  Budget  YTD Expenses  Encumbrances  Fav / (Unfav)  Transfers in  Transfers out  Ending 
Balance 

10044230 ENO MEMORIAL HALL 52350 CUSTODIAL SERVICES 1,750             -                            -                           1,750                -                   (1,750)                
10044230 ENO MEMORIAL HALL 53200 BUILDING SUPPLIES 4,150             4,914                       -                           (764)                  764                   -                      
10044230 ENO MEMORIAL HALL 53210 CLEANING SUPPLIES 3,200             4,146                       -                           (946)                  946                   -                      
10044230 ENO MEMORIAL HALL 54310 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 16,600          22,370                     -                           (5,770)               5,770               -                      
10044230 ENO MEMORIAL HALL 54330 FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 4,350             5,022                       -                           (672)                  672                   -                      
10044230 ENO MEMORIAL HALL 55110 WATER CHARGES 1,300             2,455                       -                           (1,155)               1,155               -                      
10044230 ENO MEMORIAL HALL 55120 SEWER USE FEES 556                544                           -                           12                      -                   (12)                      
10044230 ENO MEMORIAL HALL 55210 NATURAL GAS/PROPANE 35,000          17,938                     -                           17,062              -                   (17,062)              
10044230 ENO MEMORIAL HALL 55220 ELECTRIC 20,000          19,118                     -                           882                    -                   (882)                   
10044230 ENO MEMORIAL HALL 58220 BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS 3,000             3,000                       -                           0                        -                   (0)                        

Amount Sent to Other Eno Memorial Hall 10,400               
89,906          79,506                     -                           10,400              9,306               (19,706)              -                   

10044250 MISC BUILDINGS 53200 BUILDING SUPPLIES 1,350             267                           -                           1,083                -                   (1,083)                
10044250 MISC BUILDINGS 54310 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 2,950             1,487                       -                           1,463                -                   (1,463)                
10044250 MISC BUILDINGS 54330 FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 5,250             8,950                       -                           (3,700)               3,700               -                      
10044250 MISC BUILDINGS 55110 WATER CHARGES 350                925                           -                           (575)                  575                   -                      
10044250 MISC BUILDINGS 55220 ELECTRIC 6,000             9,523                       -                           (3,523)               3,523               -                      
10044250 MISC BUILDINGS 55240 HEATING OIL 1,625             4,694                       -                           (3,069)               3,069               -                      

Amount Sent From Other Departments Misc Buildings (8,320)              -                      
17,525          25,845                     -                           (8,320)               10,866             (2,546)                -                   

10044310 HIGHWAY-LABR & EQUIP 51010 FULL-TIME 1,145,276     1,145,208               -                           68                      -                   (68)                      
10044310 HIGHWAY-LABR & EQUIP 51030 OVERTIME 136,850        205,007                   -                           (68,157)             68,157             -                      
10044310 HIGHWAY-LABR & EQUIP 51040 SEASONAL 14,400          15,540                     -                           (1,140)               1,140               -                      
10044310 HIGHWAY-LABR & EQUIP 52620 EQUIPMENT RENTALS 1,500             1,763                       -                           (263)                  263                   -                      
10044310 HIGHWAY-LABR & EQUIP 52920 LAUNDRY SERVICE 8,000             7,895                       -                           105                    -                   (105)                   
10044310 HIGHWAY-LABR & EQUIP 53105 TECH & PROGRAM SUPPLIES 5,000             6,410                       -                           (1,410)               1,410               -                      
10044310 HIGHWAY-LABR & EQUIP 53600 PARTS SUPPLIES 102,000        124,227                   -                           (22,227)             22,227             -                      
10044310 HIGHWAY-LABR & EQUIP 53700 CLOTHES & SAFETY SUPPLIES 11,075          11,455                     -                           (380)                  380                   -                      
10044310 HIGHWAY-LABR & EQUIP 53800 OIL & LUBRICANTS 8,750             7,502                       -                           1,248                -                   (1,248)                
10044310 HIGHWAY-LABR & EQUIP 54310 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 9,000             15,089                     -                           (6,089)               6,089               -                      
10044310 HIGHWAY-LABR & EQUIP 54320 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 10,000          10,203                     -                           (203)                  203                   -                      
10044310 HIGHWAY-LABR & EQUIP 55210 NATURAL GAS/PROPANE 3,000             2,869                       -                           131                    -                   (131)                   
10044310 HIGHWAY-LABR & EQUIP 55260 GASOLINE 41,250          40,851                     -                           399                    -                   (399)                   
10044310 HIGHWAY-LABR & EQUIP 55261 DIESEL FUEL 84,420          90,399                     -                           (5,979)               5,979               -                      
10044310 HIGHWAY-LABR & EQUIP 57910 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 275                -                            -                           275                    -                   (275)                   
10044310 HIGHWAY-LABR & EQUIP 58525 TRUCKS -                 -                            -                           -                    -                   -                      
10044320 HIGHWAY-FAC & PRGMS 52200 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 68,500          67,990                     -                           510                    -                   (510)                   
10044320 HIGHWAY-FAC & PRGMS 52360 TREE SERVICE 40,000          37,255                     -                           2,745                -                   (2,745)                
10044320 HIGHWAY-FAC & PRGMS 53200 BUILDING SUPPLIES 4,300             4,477                       -                           (177)                  177                   -                      
10044320 HIGHWAY-FAC & PRGMS 53210 CLEANING SUPPLIES 1,500             1,135                       -                           365                    -                   (365)                   
10044320 HIGHWAY-FAC & PRGMS 53300 AGRICULTURAL SUPPLIES 2,000             1,775                       -                           225                    -                   (225)                   
10044320 HIGHWAY-FAC & PRGMS 53400 TRAFFIC CONTROL SUPPLIES 15,250          15,390                     -                           (140)                  140                   -                      
10044320 HIGHWAY-FAC & PRGMS 53410 ROAD & DRAINAGE SUPPLIES 300,000        314,411                   -                           (14,411)             14,411             -                      
10044320 HIGHWAY-FAC & PRGMS 53600 PARTS SUPPLIES 4,000             3,205                       -                           795                    -                   (795)                   
10044320 HIGHWAY-FAC & PRGMS 53900 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES 2,300             3,918                       -                           (1,618)               1,618               -                      
10044320 HIGHWAY-FAC & PRGMS 54310 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 3,500             7,369                       -                           (3,869)               3,869               -                      
10044320 HIGHWAY-FAC & PRGMS 54330 FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 9,500             18,397                     -                           (8,897)               8,897               -                      
10044320 HIGHWAY-FAC & PRGMS 55110 WATER CHARGES 1,660             2,302                       -                           (642)                  642                   -                      
10044320 HIGHWAY-FAC & PRGMS 55210 NATURAL GAS/PROPANE 21,000          19,457                     -                           1,543                -                   (1,543)                
10044320 HIGHWAY-FAC & PRGMS 55220 ELECTRIC 10,500          12,513                     -                           (2,013)               2,013               -                      
10044320 HIGHWAY-FAC & PRGMS 55225 STREET LIGHTS 112,000        135,711                   -                           (23,711)             23,711             -                      
10044320 HIGHWAY-FAC & PRGMS 55240 HEATING OIL 5,360             1,587                       -                           3,773                -                   (3,773)                
10044320 HIGHWAY-FAC & PRGMS 58220 BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS 3,200             1,850                       -                           1,350                -                   (1,350)                
10044320 HIGHWAY-FAC & PRGMS 58410 ROADS & DRAINAGE 63,500          64,890                     -                           (1,390)               1,390               -                      
10044320 HIGHWAY-FAC & PRGMS 58450 SIDEWALKS -                 -                            -                           -                    -                   -                      
10044320 HIGHWAY-FAC & PRGMS 58731 ROAD IMPROVEMENTS 400,000        396,717                   -                           3,283                -                   (3,283)                

Amount Sent From Other Departments Highway (145,902)         -                      
2,648,866     2,794,768               -                           (145,902)          162,717           (16,815)              -                   



BUDGET UNIT BUDGET UNIT    Title Account Account Title  Budget  YTD Expenses  Encumbrances  Fav / (Unfav)  Transfers in  Transfers out  Ending 
Balance 

10044500 LANDFILL 52200 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 55,000          52,610                     -                           2,390                -                   (2,390)                
10044500 LANDFILL 54330 FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 2,000             3,556                       -                           (1,556)               1,556               -                      
10044500 LANDFILL 56910 PUBLIC AGENCY SUPPORT -                 -                            -                           -                    -                   -                      

Amount Sent to Other Landfill 833                     
57,000          56,167                     -                           833                    1,556               (2,390)                -                   

10045100 HEALTH 52200 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 119,281        119,281                   -                           -                    -                   -                      -                   

10045210 SOCIAL SRVS-ADMN 51010 FULL-TIME 149,780        151,589                   -                           (1,809)               1,809               -                      
10045210 SOCIAL SRVS-ADMN 52200 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 500                300                           -                           200                    -                   (200)                   
10045210 SOCIAL SRVS-ADMN 52510 COPY & PRINTING SERVICES 250                -                            -                           250                    -                   (250)                   
10045210 SOCIAL SRVS-ADMN 52550 POSTAGE 700                1,141                       -                           (441)                  441                   -                      
10045210 SOCIAL SRVS-ADMN 53100 OFFICE SUPPLIES 800                685                           -                           115                    -                   (115)                   
10045210 SOCIAL SRVS-ADMN 53105 TECH & PROGRAM SUPPLIES 100                38                             -                           62                      -                   (62)                      
10045210 SOCIAL SRVS-ADMN 56910 PUBLIC AGENCY SUPPORT 34,000          34,000                     -                           -                    -                   -                      
10045210 SOCIAL SRVS-ADMN 57910 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 850                657                           -                           193                    -                   (193)                   

Amount Sent From Other Social Srvs-Admin (1,429)              -                      
186,980        188,409                   -                           (1,429)               2,250               (821)                   -                   

10045221 ELDERLY SRVS OUTRCH 51020 PART TIME 23,660          23,505                     -                           155                    -                   (155)                   
10045221 ELDERLY SRVS OUTRCH 53105 TECH & PROGRAM SUPPLIES 150                137                           -                           13                      -                   (13)                      

Amount Sent to Other Elderly Srvs Outrch 168                     
23,810          23,642                     -                           168                    -                   (168)                   -                   

10045222 SENIOR CENTER 51010 FULL-TIME 107,052        113,294                   -                           (6,242)               6,242               -                      
10045222 SENIOR CENTER 51020 PART TIME 2,000             2,558                       -                           (558)                  558                   -                      
10045222 SENIOR CENTER 52200 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 16,445          16,168                     -                           277                    -                   (277)                   
10045222 SENIOR CENTER 52510 COPY & PRINTING SERVICES 1,000             941                           -                           59                      -                   (59)                      
10045222 SENIOR CENTER 52550 POSTAGE 3,052             2,859                       -                           193                    -                   (193)                   
10045222 SENIOR CENTER 52620 EQUIPMENT RENTALS 585                536                           -                           49                      -                   (49)                      
10045222 SENIOR CENTER 53100 OFFICE SUPPLIES 600                600                           -                           -                    -                   -                      
10045222 SENIOR CENTER 53105 TECH & PROGRAM SUPPLIES 1,580             1,580                       -                           -                    -                   -                      
10045222 SENIOR CENTER 54310 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 1,625             1,379                       -                           246                    -                   (246)                   

Amount Sent From Other Senior Center (1,429)              -                      
133,939        139,914                   -                           (5,975)               6,800               (824)                   -                   

10045230 SEN. TRANSPORTATION 52200 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 113,745        115,974                   -                           (2,229)               2,229               -                      
Amount Sent From Other Sen. Transportation (2,229)              -                      

113,745        115,974                   -                           (2,229)               2,229               -                      -                   

10046110 RECREATION-ADMIN 51050 SPLIT TIME 49,608          50,495                     -                           (887)                  887                   -                      
10046110 RECREATION-ADMIN 52400 ADVERTISING 440                291                           -                           149                    -                   (149)                   
10046110 RECREATION-ADMIN 52510 COPY & PRINTING SERVICES 250                200                           -                           50                      -                   (50)                      
10046110 RECREATION-ADMIN 52550 POSTAGE 250                805                           -                           (555)                  555                   -                      
10046110 RECREATION-ADMIN 53100 OFFICE SUPPLIES 520                427                           -                           93                      -                   (93)                      
10046110 RECREATION-ADMIN 54310 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 270                369                           -                           (99)                    99                     -                      
10046110 RECREATION-ADMIN 57910 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 255                362                           -                           (107)                  107                   -                      

Amount Sent From Other Recreation-Admin (1,358)              -                      
51,593          52,951                     -                           (1,358)               1,649               (291)                   -                   

10046120 REC-MEMORIAL POOL 51040 SEASONAL 24,800          24,767                     -                           33                      -                   (33)                      
Amount Sent to Other Rec Memorial Pool 33                       

24,800          24,767                     -                           33                      -                   (33)                      -                   



BUDGET UNIT BUDGET UNIT    Title Account Account Title  Budget  YTD Expenses  Encumbrances  Fav / (Unfav)  Transfers in  Transfers out  Ending 
Balance 

10046310 P&OS-MAINTENANCE 51010 FULL-TIME 440,755        425,620                   -                           15,135              -                   (15,135)              
10046310 P&OS-MAINTENANCE 51030 OVERTIME 15,250          22,194                     -                           (6,944)               6,944               -                      
10046310 P&OS-MAINTENANCE 51040 SEASONAL 23,200          24,792                     -                           (1,592)               1,592               -                      
10046310 P&OS-MAINTENANCE 52620 EQUIPMENT RENTALS 5,000             8,578                       -                           (3,578)               3,578               -                      
10046310 P&OS-MAINTENANCE 52920 LAUNDRY SERVICE 2,000             1,882                       -                           118                    -                   (118)                   
10046310 P&OS-MAINTENANCE 53105 TECH & PROGRAM SUPPLIES 300                348                           -                           (48)                    48                     -                      
10046310 P&OS-MAINTENANCE 53200 BUILDING SUPPLIES 2,600             5,510                       -                           (2,910)               2,910               -                      
10046310 P&OS-MAINTENANCE 53210 CLEANING SUPPLIES 1,500             1,665                       -                           (165)                  165                   -                      
10046310 P&OS-MAINTENANCE 53300 AGRICULTURAL SUPPLIES 8,101             8,353                       -                           (252)                  252                   -                      
10046310 P&OS-MAINTENANCE 53410 ROAD & DRAINAGE SUPPLIES 2,678             3,611                       -                           (933)                  933                   -                      
10046310 P&OS-MAINTENANCE 53600 PARTS SUPPLIES 13,100          14,441                     -                           (1,341)               1,341               -                      
10046310 P&OS-MAINTENANCE 53700 CLOTHES & SAFETY SUPPLIES 2,450             2,900                       -                           (450)                  450                   -                      
10046310 P&OS-MAINTENANCE 53800 OIL & LUBRICANTS 600                1,629                       -                           (1,029)               1,029               -                      
10046310 P&OS-MAINTENANCE 54310 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 5,000             9,166                       -                           (4,166)               4,166               -                      
10046310 P&OS-MAINTENANCE 54320 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 3,400             3,115                       -                           285                    -                   (285)                   
10046310 P&OS-MAINTENANCE 54330 FACILITIES MAINTENANCE -                 5,570                       -                           (5,570)               5,570               -                      
10046310 P&OS-MAINTENANCE 55110 WATER CHARGES 10,500          8,385                       -                           2,115                -                   (2,115)                
10046310 P&OS-MAINTENANCE 55210 NATURAL GAS/PROPANE 5,500             6,915                       -                           (1,415)               1,415               -                      
10046310 P&OS-MAINTENANCE 55220 ELECTRIC 9,500             9,937                       -                           (437)                  437                   -                      
10046310 P&OS-MAINTENANCE 55260 GASOLINE 26,010          25,457                     -                           553                    -                   (553)                   
10046310 P&OS-MAINTENANCE 55261 DIESEL FUEL 7,927             8,203                       -                           (276)                  276                   -                      
10046310 P&OS-MAINTENANCE 57910 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 300                348                           -                           (48)                    48                     -                      
10046310 P&OS-MAINTENANCE 58560 TECHNICAL & PROGRAM EQUIP -                 -                            -                           -                    -                   -                      
10046310 P&OS-MAINTENANCE 58610 PARKS IMPROVEMENTS 10,000          4,369                       -                           5,631                -                   (5,631)                

Amount Sent From Other P&OS Maintenance (7,320)              -                      
595,671        602,991                   -                           (7,320)               31,156             (23,836)              -                   

10046320 P&OS-MEM FIELD 51040 SEASONAL 5,170             3,848                       -                           1,322                -                   (1,322)                
10046320 P&OS-MEM FIELD 53200 BUILDING SUPPLIES 750                955                           -                           (205)                  205                   -                      
10046320 P&OS-MEM FIELD 53300 AGRICULTURAL SUPPLIES 5,500             5,705                       -                           (205)                  205                   -                      
10046320 P&OS-MEM FIELD 53600 PARTS SUPPLIES 2,500             2,648                       -                           (148)                  148                   -                      
10046320 P&OS-MEM FIELD 54310 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 2,000             2,142                       -                           (142)                  142                   -                      
10046320 P&OS-MEM FIELD 54320 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 500                36                             -                           464                    -                   (464)                   
10046320 P&OS-MEM FIELD 55110 WATER CHARGES 3,000             1,783                       -                           1,217                -                   (1,217)                
10046320 P&OS-MEM FIELD 55260 GASOLINE 1,000             1,000                       -                           -                    -                   -                      
10046320 P&OS-MEM FIELD 55261 DIESEL FUEL 1,000             1,000                       -                           -                    -                   -                      

Amount Sent to Other P&OS-MEM FIELD 2,302                 
21,420          19,118                     -                           2,302                701                   (3,003)                -                   

10046330 P&OS-MEM POOL 53200 BUILDING SUPPLIES 1,200             2,131                       -                           (931)                  931                   -                      
10046330 P&OS-MEM POOL 53210 CLEANING SUPPLIES 800                61                             -                           739                    -                   (739)                   
10046330 P&OS-MEM POOL 53505 CHEMICAL & LAB SUPPLIES 4,040             2,802                       -                           1,238                -                   (1,238)                
10046330 P&OS-MEM POOL 53600 PARTS SUPPLIES 500                1,132                       -                           (632)                  632                   -                      
10046330 P&OS-MEM POOL 54310 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 2,100             1,851                       -                           249                    -                   (249)                   
10046330 P&OS-MEM POOL 55110 WATER CHARGES 5,000             5,295                       -                           (295)                  295                   -                      
10046330 P&OS-MEM POOL 55120 SEWER USE FEES 1,800             1,997                       -                           (197)                  197                   -                      
10046330 P&OS-MEM POOL 55220 ELECTRIC 2,200             2,437                       -                           (237)                  237                   -                      
10046330 P&OS-MEM POOL 55240 HEATING OIL 150                -                            -                           150                    -                   (150)                   
10046330 P&OS-MEM POOL 55350 REFUSE DISPOSAL 2,400             2,545                       -                           (145)                  145                   -                      

Amount Sent From Other P&OS Pool (61)                   -                      
20,190          20,251                     -                           (61)                    2,438               (2,376)                -                   



BUDGET UNIT BUDGET UNIT    Title Account Account Title  Budget  YTD Expenses  Encumbrances  Fav / (Unfav)  Transfers in  Transfers out  Ending 
Balance 

10047100 LIBRARY ADMIN 51010 FULL-TIME 338,770        279,595                   -                           59,175              -                   (59,175)              
10047100 LIBRARY ADMIN 51020 PART TIME 74,757          90,187                     -                           (15,430)             15,430             -                      
10047100 LIBRARY ADMIN 51030 OVERTIME -                 -                            -                           -                    -                   -                      
10047100 LIBRARY ADMIN 52200 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 55,469          52,305                     -                           3,164                -                   (3,164)                
10047100 LIBRARY ADMIN 52510 COPY & PRINTING SERVICES 800                35                             -                           765                    -                   (765)                   
10047100 LIBRARY ADMIN 52520 BANK FEES 1,100             1,798                       -                           (698)                  698                   -                      
10047100 LIBRARY ADMIN 52550 POSTAGE 350                213                           -                           137                    -                   (137)                   
10047100 LIBRARY ADMIN 53100 OFFICE SUPPLIES 3,000             2,849                       -                           151                    -                   (151)                   
10047100 LIBRARY ADMIN 53105 TECH & PROGRAM SUPPLIES 9,000             8,095                       -                           905                    -                   (905)                   
10047100 LIBRARY ADMIN 54310 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 19,550          14,296                     -                           5,254                -                   (5,254)                
10047100 LIBRARY ADMIN 57910 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 960                680                           -                           280                    -                   (280)                   

Amount Sent to Other Library Admin 53,703               
503,756        450,053                   -                           53,703              16,127             (69,830)              -                   

10047200 LIB ADLT & YNG ADLT 51010 FULL-TIME 320,198        350,572                   -                           (30,374)             30,374             -                      
10047200 LIB ADLT & YNG ADLT 51020 PART TIME 36,500          32,039                     -                           4,461                -                   (4,461)                
10047200 LIB ADLT & YNG ADLT 52200 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 8,480             4,788                       -                           3,692                -                   (3,692)                
10047200 LIB ADLT & YNG ADLT 53105 TECH & PROGRAM SUPPLIES 1,000             785                           -                           215                    -                   (215)                   
10047200 LIB ADLT & YNG ADLT 53150 REFERENCE MATERIALS 122,857        123,799                   -                           (942)                  942                   -                      

Amount Sent From Other LIB ADLT & YNH ADLT (22,948)            -                      
489,035        511,983                   -                           (22,948)             31,316             (8,368)                -                   

10047300 LIB CHILDREN SRVS 51010 FULL-TIME 182,158        179,432                   -                           2,726                -                   (2,726)                
10047300 LIB CHILDREN SRVS 51020 PART TIME 112,256        106,147                   -                           6,109                -                   (6,109)                
10047300 LIB CHILDREN SRVS 51030 OVERTIME -                 149                           -                           (149)                  149                   -                      
10047300 LIB CHILDREN SRVS 52200 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 2,000             2,075                       -                           (75)                    75                     -                      
10047300 LIB CHILDREN SRVS 52510 COPY & PRINTING SERVICES 100                -                            -                           100                    -                   (100)                   
10047300 LIB CHILDREN SRVS 53105 TECH & PROGRAM SUPPLIES 1,400             2,074                       -                           (674)                  674                   -                      
10047300 LIB CHILDREN SRVS 53150 REFERENCE MATERIALS 37,470          38,146                     -                           (676)                  676                   -                      

Amount Sent to Other Library Children Services 7,360                 
335,384        328,024                   -                           7,360                1,574               (8,935)                -                   



BUDGET UNIT BUDGET UNIT    Title Account Account Title  Budget  YTD Expenses  Encumbrances  Fav / (Unfav)  Transfers in  Transfers out  Ending 
Balance 

10047400 LIB BLDNGS & GRNDS 52350 CUSTODIAL SERVICES 2,935             6,018                       -                           (3,083)               3,083               -                      
10047400 LIB BLDNGS & GRNDS 53105 TECH & PROGRAM SUPPLIES 500                -                            -                           500                    -                   (500)                   
10047400 LIB BLDNGS & GRNDS 53200 BUILDING SUPPLIES 4,700             5,464                       -                           (764)                  764                   -                      
10047400 LIB BLDNGS & GRNDS 53210 CLEANING SUPPLIES 2,300             1,662                       -                           638                    -                   (638)                   
10047400 LIB BLDNGS & GRNDS 54310 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 15,000          22,103                     -                           (7,103)               7,103               -                      
10047400 LIB BLDNGS & GRNDS 54330 FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 2,000             1,781                       -                           219                    -                   (219)                   
10047400 LIB BLDNGS & GRNDS 55110 WATER CHARGES 2,040             1,875                       -                           165                    -                   (165)                   
10047400 LIB BLDNGS & GRNDS 55120 SEWER USE FEES 1,100             941                           -                           159                    -                   (159)                   
10047400 LIB BLDNGS & GRNDS 55210 NATURAL GAS/PROPANE 24,000          24,887                     -                           (887)                  887                   -                      
10047400 LIB BLDNGS & GRNDS 55220 ELECTRIC 72,000          69,557                     -                           2,443                -                   (2,443)                
10047400 LIB BLDNGS & GRNDS 55240 HEATING OIL 500                -                            -                           500                    -                   (500)                   
10047400 LIB BLDNGS & GRNDS 55350 REFUSE DISPOSAL 2,335             2,547                       -                           (212)                  212                   -                      

Amount Sent From Other LIB Bldngs & Grnds (7,426)              -                      
129,410        136,836                   -                           (7,426)               12,050             (4,624)                -                   

10048100 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 51110 MAJOR MEDICAL INSURANCE 2,391,675     2,152,988               -                           238,687            -                   (130,825.47)      107,862.00     
10048100 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 51120 LIFE INSURANCE 38,920          41,987                     -                           (3,067)               3,067               -                      -                   
10048100 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 51130 DISABILITY INSURANCE 22,795          23,341                     -                           (546)                  546                   -                      -                   
10048100 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 51200 SOCIAL SECURITY/FICA 693,000        711,030                   -                           (18,030)             18,030             -                      -                   
10048100 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 51310 POLICE PENSIONS 728,986        717,096                   -                           11,891              -                   (11,891)              -                   
10048100 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 51320 TOWN PENSIONS 927,832        942,635                   -                           (14,803)             14,803             -                      -                   
10048100 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 51500 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 5,000             23,748                     -                           (18,748)             18,748             -                      -                   
10048100 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 52110 CONSULTANT 6,500             -                            -                           6,500                -                   (6,500)                -                   

Amount Sent to Other Employee Benefits 94,023               
4,814,709     4,612,824               -                           201,885            55,193             (149,216)            107,862.00     

10048200 GENERAL LIABILITY & INS 51600 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 205,423        202,244                   -                           3,179                -                   (3,179)                -                   
10048200 GENERAL LIABILITY & INS 52210 COMPREHENSIVE PROP& CASLT 215,182        251,805                   -                           (36,623)             36,623             -                      -                   
10048200 GENERAL LIABILITY & INS 52220 FLEET INSURANCE 28,080          -                            -                           28,080              -                   (28,080)              -                   
10048200 GENERAL LIABILITY & INS 52230 BOILER INSURANCE 4,600             3,660                       -                           940                    -                   (940)                   -                   
10048200 GENERAL LIABILITY & INS 52240 INSURANCE DEDUCTIBLE 10,000          10,000                     -                           -                    -                   -                      -                   

Amount Sent From Other General Liability & INS (4,424)              -                      
463,285        467,709                   -                           (4,424)               36,623             (32,199)              -                   

10049500 OPERATING TRANSFERS 51700 CONTINGENCY RESERVE 30,000          -                            -                           30,000              -                   (30,000)              -                   
Amount Sent to Other Employee Benefits 30,000               

30,000          -                            -                           30,000              -                   (30,000)              -                   

18,632,101  18,541,770             17,610                    72,721              745,408           (710,266)            107,862           



BUDGET UNIT BUDGET UNIT    Title Account Account Title  Budget  YTD Expenses  Encumbrances  Fav / (Unfav)  Transfers in  Transfers out  Ending 
Balance 

Transfers across departments
 Employee Benefits 94,023               
 Library Admin 53,703               
 Information Technology 44,897               
 Employee Benefits 30,000               
 Finance Department 28,164               
 Dir of Comm Devmnt 27,961               
 Planning Depmnt 25,592               
 Town Offices 16,717               
 Eno Memorial Hall 10,400               
 Admin Services 8,089                 
 Library Children Services 7,360                 
 Animal Control 7,245                 
 Public Works Admin 4,662                 
 P&OS-MEM FIELD 2,302                 
 Assessors Office 2,199                 
 Tourism 1,779                 
 Town Clerk 1,497                 
 Landfill 833                     
 Historic Dist Comm 742                     
 Beautification 742                     
 Civil Prepdness 377                     
 Land Use Comm 245                     
 Elderly Srvs Outrch 168                     
 Rec Memorial Pool 33                       
P&OS Pool (61)                   -                      
Public Building Comm (451)                 -                      
Recreation-Admin (1,358)              -                      
Social Srvs-Admin (1,429)              -                      
Senior Center (1,429)              -                      
Sen. Transportation (2,229)              -                      
Board of Finance (2,752)              -                      
BOS Community Services (2,903)              
Engineering (3,654)              -                      
DepartmentsEcon Dvlmnt (3,718)              -                      
Building Departments (3,832)              -                      
General Liability & INS (4,424)              -                      
Elections Admin (5,597)              -                      
P&OS Maintenance (7,320)              -                      
LIB Bldngs & Grnds (7,426)              -                      
Misc Buildings (8,320)              -                      
Audit (9,201)              -                      
Tax (10,731)            -                      
 Bldgs & Mnt Admin (14,974)            
LIB ADLT & YNH ADLT (22,948)            -                      
Legal Services (27,252)            -                      
Police Department (31,549)            -                      
Central Admin (50,270)            
Highway (145,902)         -                      
Subtotal (369,730)         369,730             



 

  Town of Simsbury 
 

933 HOPMEADOW STREET  P.O. BOX 495  SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT 06070 
                     

 

 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING 
AGENDA SUBMISSION FORM 

 
 
1. Title of submission:    EDTF Process Group Recommendations 
 
 
2. Date of submission:  10/20/15  
 
 
3. Date of Board Meeting: 10/26/15 
 
 
4. Individual or Entity making the submission:  EDTF Chairman Nancy Haase 

 
 

5. Action requested of the Board of Selectmen (Acceptance of gift, creation of reserve, 
approval of contract, information only, etc.  Be as specific as possible with respect 
to the desired action of the Board.): 
The Individual or Entity making the submission requests that the Board of Selectmen: 
 
Review recommendations as proposed by the Economic Development Task Force (EDTF) 
Process Group.    

 
6. Individual(s) responsible for submission (Please include complete contact 

information.  The identified individual(s) should be prepared to present information 
to the Board of Selectmen at the Board Meeting.): 

 
Nancy Haase nhaase@myspitfire.com / Kevin Crimmins kevin.crimmins@comcast.net /  
Bill Ethier bethier@hbact.org   

 
7. Summary of Submission (Include in your summary (i) relevant dates and timelines; 

(ii) parties involved; (iii) a description of financial terms and conditions specifically 
identifying the financial exposure/commitment of the Town of Simsbury; (iv) whether 
or not contracts, licenses and other legal documents have been reviewed by the 
Town’s counsel; and (v) other information that will inform the Board of Selectmen’s 
consideration of your submission.  Include any additional information in an attached 
memorandum.): 

 
 Copy of the EDTF Process Group Recommendations and supporting documentation.  
 

8. Description of documents included with submission (All documents must be in final 
form and signed by the appropriate party.): 

 The following documents are included with this submission and attached hereto: 



 
Copy of the EDTF Process Group Recommendations and supporting documentation. 



Town of Simsbury Economic Development Task Force – Process Working Group Recommendations  
September 8, 2015  

 
 

Members: Wayne Cobleigh, Kevin Crimmins, Bill Ethier, Louis George, Ron Jodice 

Staff: Hiram Peck, Sarah Nielsen, Nancy Haase 

Process Working Group Priority Action: Create and Sustain an Efficient Land Use Permit Application Process  

Preface 

Simsbury competes for economic development against formidable challenges from regional, statewide, 
national and even global alternatives.   Economic development involves both the attraction of new investors 
into the local economy and the retention of those who already have invested in the Town.  Capital flows most 
readily to the path of least resistance when the rewards are acceptable for the risks of investing that capital.  
Accordingly, some of the most important things that the Town can do to improve its effectiveness at economic 
development and its permitting and decision making processes involve the removal of impediments to sound 
investments in our Town. 

The Economic Development Commission is charged, by the Town’s Charter, with supporting and encouraging 
growth of the Town’s Grand List.  By statute, the adopted plans and regulations including the Town’s Plan of 
Conservation and Development (POCD) provide documentation of the Town’s vision for the types of land uses 
that it views as desirable.  As such these adopted plans and regulations serve as a useful guide to all who have 
an interest in development regarding the sorts of development that might be considered appropriate and be 
met with support. 

Economic development activity almost invariably includes projects and other plans that require review and 
approval by the Town’s various boards and commissions, especially those focused on land use. Every 
opportunity to enhance those boards and commissions’ reputations for efficiency, preparation and fairness is 
an opportunity to enhance the Town’s competitiveness in economic and community development. 

With those ideas as guideposts, this Process Workgroup set out to identify opportunities for improvements, 
adjustments and enhancements to the process of efficiently bringing forward any project or other initiative 
related to economic development in Simsbury. All the great branding and marketing work that’s been done, 
from updating the web site to the messaging about what Simsbury has to offer entrepreneurs, employers and 
job creators, will be wasted if an applicant, i.e., an investor, experiences: A) a difficult, lengthy or confusing 
process, or B) staff that cannot impress them with service, or C) disrespectful or unprepared commission 
members who ultimately decide an applicant’s future.   

Through a lengthy review, evaluation and discussion process, the Group has identified three major areas of 
focus and a total of six (6) specific recommendations.  The areas of focus are listed here, for reference, and the 
recommendations are presented and discussed in detail below, grouped by area of focus. 

A. Land Use Process, Structure, Sequence of Steps 
B. Staffing, and 
C. Commission Members 



Town of Simsbury Economic Development Task Force – Process Working Group Recommendations  
September 8, 2015  

 
 

2 

Process Working Group Recommendations 

A.  Land Use Process, Structure, Sequence of Steps: 

1. Revise the Town Charter to consolidate the Planning Commission and Zoning Commission.  Consolidation 
will improve the efficiency of communications, eliminate delays caused by referrals to separate 
commissions, enhance the depth of qualified candidates for elected positions and streamline the land use 
process as well as improve staff efficiency.  Combining Planning & Zoning into one body will help meet 
investor’s expectations for a simplified process with as few steps as possible. 

 
Next Steps:  Analyze information available from the Connecticut Economic Resources Center regarding 
which municipalities similar in population to Simsbury have combined Planning and Zoning 
Commissions and determine whether their results have included improving competitiveness, reducing 
turnover of members and any other advantages or disadvantages.  Benchmark nearby municipalities of 
Avon, Farmington and Windsor for the impact of establishing a combined Planning and Zoning 
Commission. Review the Town Charter to assess a call for a Charter revision to establish 
responsibilities and procedures for Commissions and Boards being evaluated for consolidation.   

 
2. Optimize the sequencing of Board and Commission meetings to maximize efficiency of the process for 

applicants.  Where possible, meeting schedules should support a logical flow of the groups whose review 
is necessary for land use applications. An optimal sequence will avoid unnecessary delays for applicants.  
Included in the review: the Inland Wetlands Commission, Planning and Zoning Commissions, Economic 
Development Commission, Zoning Board of Appeals, Water Pollution Control Authority and Design Review 
Board. Evaluate the application sequence impact of the Farmington Valley Health Department and Fire 
District.  The Design Review Board meeting at the same hearing as the Zoning Commission is a current 
example of streamlining in action. Pre-application Review meetings requested by applicants for a complex 
project is also a method to streamline the application process. Likewise, accommodating requests from 
applicants for joint hearings or meetings, or both, among two or more boards and commissions could 
make the application process more efficient for all parties involved. 

Next Steps:  Define optimal sequencing of Town Board and Commission meetings to support efficient 
movement of projects and applications through the approvals process.  To the extent that the current 
meeting schedules may be inconsistent with that optimal flow, adjust schedules to align with the 
optimal sequence.  

 

B.  Staffing: 
 

3. Emphasize economic development as a priority and a primary focus of the Town of Simsbury:  
a.  Supplement the staffing for both the building department and the planning department. These 

departments both report current workloads which exceed the capacity of their current staffing to handle 
with the desired level of efficiency.  Presently, each reports that an additional part-time person would be 
sufficient to balance their workloads.  These two new part-time roles could be consolidated into one full-



Town of Simsbury Economic Development Task Force – Process Working Group Recommendations  
September 8, 2015  

 
 

3 

time, cross-trained staff position. This staff expansion can be expected to improve customer service to 
Applicants proposing business expansion projects or new economic development projects.  

b. The Economic Development Commission should operate as a function of the chief executive 
officer of the Town.  The chief executive officer should be the primary contact responsible for 
economic development and for supporting the EDC as it facilitates the economic development 
process from lead generation to preparation of letters of support to applicants.  Presently, the EDC 
operates primarily with guidance from the Town Planner. This change not only will bring the 
influence and authority of the chief executive officer to the important function of economic 
development, it also will create efficiencies for the Town Planner and enable the Town Planner to 
focus more on community development and planning responsibilities.  In addition, it aligns a 
primary duty for economic development with the chief executive officer.  Economic development 
leadership and staffing decisions will be the responsibility of the chief executive officer. The chief 
executive officer is also the appropriate level of staff responsibility for directing the 
implementation of approved Economic Development Task Force recommendations with the 
overall goal to achieve consistent and excellent customer service for applicants. Simsbury needs to 
stand out from other municipalities as a Town with excellent service by employees, boards and 
commissions who are well educated on the permit process and who respect the applicant’s 
interests in efficiency and cost-effectiveness.  The chief executive officer should regularly report 
the status and progress on any economic development initiatives to the Board of Selectmen and 
the public. The chief executive officer should determine how to effectively balance responsibility 
and accountability for business retention and economic development growth within the total 
responsibilities of his or her job. Administrative functions and technical matters can be delegated 
to the appropriate staff. The chief executive officer answering introductory calls from prospective 
businesses and directing these prospects as appropriate to the EDC, boards and commissions will 
reinforce that Simsbury welcomes responsible economic development. The chief executive officer 
should continue the business visitation program and inform prospective applicants of his or her 
position on economic development matters on the Town’s web site inviting prospective applicants 
to call with their questions, concerns or compliments. The chief executive officer should maintain a 
high level of awareness of matters relevant to economic development leadership and seek 
opportunities to make presentations on economic development to prospective real estate 
developers and corporate siting professionals.  

  

Next Steps:  Plan accordingly for staffing requests in the annual budget approval process.  
 

C.  Commission Members: 

 

4. Create an orientation and continuous education process and access to tools and resources to enable 
Commissioners and Board members to be knowledgeable in their roles and responsibilities and well-
prepared. In all endeavors, professions and trades, continuous learning is essential to achieving 
excellence and adapting to changes. Actively oriented members will differentiate Simsbury and allow us to 
better compete in the 21st century as an equitable and efficient place for community development, 



Town of Simsbury Economic Development Task Force – Process Working Group Recommendations  
September 8, 2015  

 
 

4 

business retention and growth. Budgeting for reimbursement and funding of orientation and continuous 
education out of pocket and travel expenses by the Town for elected and appointed board and 
commission members will be an investment that reinforces the Town’s values of educational excellence, 
our reputation for responsible land use. The investment in the education of appointed and elected officials 
also benefits the Town financially by reducing the potential for litigation for claims and losses due to 
negligence, errors and omissions in processing land use permit applications.  

 
The primary areas identified for orientation include: 
a) Robert’s Rules for conducting meetings, voting and recording of minutes and the role of the chairman and 

public participation. 
b) Freedom of Information Act Statutes. 
c) The current land use process including CGS 8-7(d) and any changes to the regulatory process.  
d) Civics with an emphasis on federal, state and local government land use regulations and how the State 

judicial branch of government functions in an appeal of a permit application decision. 
e) The land use applicant’s responsibilities, their use of experts and their basic property rights. 
f) A general understanding of the real estate development process, including an overview of project 

financing, other approval timelines, the importance for the applicant of meeting the market, and how 
delays can cause proposals to fail. 

g) An understanding of the importance of a commissioner’s civic duties, including maintaining monthly 
meetings throughout the year. 

Orientation and continuous education can be conducted on dates when meetings are scheduled to efficiently 
complete the orientation (including land use commissions, Town Staff, EDC, Zoning Board of Appeals, and 
Water Pollution Control Authority). 
 
Orientation and continuous education resources are available to Simsbury to invest in our Boards and 
Commissioners, as follows:  
 

The State of Connecticut Office of Policy and Management Report dated January 13, 2006, “Land Use Training 
and Education Available to Members of Local Land Use Agencies” (in Accordance With Section 85 of 
Public Act No. 05-3) summarizes a series of ad hoc orientation opportunities available in Connecticut. 
Orientation resources are available from the University of Connecticut (available in 2015 free of charge 
and locally with technology that allows for answering test questions real time and anonymously as a class), 
Connecticut Bar Association, Connecticut Conference of Municipalities, Connecticut Main Street Center, 
Connecticut Association of Inland Wetland Commissioners, The American Planning Association, The 
Connecticut Economic Development Association, The International Council of Shopping Centers University 
and others.  The Connecticut Partnership for Balanced Growth, a 501(c)(4) nonprofit, can offer orientation 
on the land developers’ perspective when selecting property to develop and the process developers go 
through to develop a land use application through public hearings and implementation. 

 

Benefits of a proactive orientation and continuous education program:  



Town of Simsbury Economic Development Task Force – Process Working Group Recommendations  
September 8, 2015  

 
 

5 

a) Reduce costs to the Town and time invested by the Town staff, Town Attorney, Commissioners and 
Chairpersons, applicants and the public by having fewer and more productive hearings and meetings 
resulting from better prepared Commissioners. 

b) Enable Commissioners to better prepare themselves for carrying out their responsibilities at each meeting 
and interaction with Applicants. 

c) Reduce exposure to litigation risks to the Town due to errors or omissions in following the administrative 
hearing process, state law or Town regulations. 

d) Improve the applicant’s and public’s confidence and trust in the integrity of the land use permit process for 
the benefit of the community. 

e) Optimize opportunities to grow the Town’s Grand List.  

f) Enhance compliance with Section 85 of Public Act No. 05-3 and a complimentary component to the state 
planning requirements established under Public Act No. 05-205.  These Acts strive to enhance the role of 
Municipal Plans of Conservation and Development, and to improve the vertical integration of such plans 
with their regional plan and the State Plan of Conservation and Development.  Further efforts to improve 
the statewide coordination of land use orientation programs for local land use agencies will have a 
commensurate positive benefit on the quality and effectiveness of municipal plans of conservation and 
development. 

g) Written guidance materials and videos would help prepare elected officials prior to nomination (see 
recommendation 5 below) through orientation or onboarding and annually thereafter during their term.  
The orientation would supplement the nomination’s vetting process and enhance the responsibilities of 
political parties and Commissioners. 

  

Next Steps:  Recommend specific alternatives for orientation and continuous education programs and options 
for funding by the Town for program fees and travel expenses by commissioners and board members. 

 
5. Emphasize the importance of the process for qualifying elected or appointed officials.  Remind the 

Town’s political party committees and other appointing authorities of the importance of the roles and 
responsibilities of land use commission members and the level of commitment, knowledge and education 
needed for commission members.  Outline the tools and resources for orientation available to nominees 
from the very beginning of the “onboarding” process. 

6. Include a clear summary of the Commissioners’ voting record as part of recording the minutes of 
meetings consistent with Roberts Rules of Order. This will make the voting records of the land use 
commissioners fully transparent to voters.  To facilitate this objective, the meeting clerk should conduct a 
roll call of every vote taken regarding delay, approval or denial of a permit application and include each 
member’s roll call vote in the meeting minutes consistent with Robert’s Rules of Order using an Excel form 
that accurately tallies attendance and the voting records. Each commission would then have a 
continuously updated record of each such recorded roll call vote.  Thus, a complete voting record for board 
and commission members would be readily available for reference by any interested person.   This group 
recommends the format attached as a simple, standard method for the recording of roll call votes by any 
and all Town of Simsbury boards and commissions. 

 



Town of Simsbury Economic Development Task Force – Process Working Group Recommendations  
September 8, 2015  

 
 

6 

Benefits of a more transparent roll call voting record: 
 
1. Improve accountability of elected and officials to voters and those responsible for nominations or 

appointments of commission members for their full term of public service. 
2. Simsbury gains a competitive advantage in attracting applications for responsible economic 

development consistent with our Town’s stated vision and plans, and in compliance with 
applicable land use laws. 

3. Clarity and transparency reinforces our brand because permit process efficiency, accountability 
and continuous improvement are built into our land use process. 

 
Next Steps:  Review the Robert’s Rules of Order Newly Revised 10th Edition regarding roll call votes and 
the July 1, 2009 memorandum by Hiram Peck to Mary Glassman regarding Land Use Commission, 
Board and Agency Meeting Minutes. Develop a user friendly, Excel spreadsheet standard template 
form for use on roll call votes by all boards and commissions that addresses seated and recused 
commissioners and board members. Adoption of the vote recording policy, the criteria for which votes 
should be roll call votes and standard format for reporting roll call votes will need to be reviewed and 
addressed by the Board of Selectmen. 
 

  



Town of Simsbury Economic Development Task Force – Process Working Group Recommendations  
September 8, 2015  

 
 

7 

 
Resources Reviewed and Discussed by the Process Group 

 
1. An Economic Implementation & Marketing Action Study (Fairweather Consulting and Peter Mathieu & 

Associates): Shift-Share Analysis on page 7 shows need for improving local competitiveness to attract 
positive industry mix and positive local share to overcome lack of highway access and leverage proximity 
to airport. Opportunities exist in niche manufacturing, Jackson lab support services, specialty retail, 
tourism, hospitality, recreation, and mixed use developments (page 11). This study noted Simsbury’s 
positive economic development asset as “capacity for expedited approvals” based on Planned Area 
Development of Simsbury Center Code effective April 15, 2011 (Page 21) and high quality of life in the 
Knowledge Corridor region. The report also noted “a model planning and approval process” as a factor for 
“real potential for high-end, innovation-driven development.” (page 24) The report indicated the 
community inherently seeks to continuously improve everything, [as examples]: regulations, Main Street.” 
 

2. A Guide for Processing Land Use Development Applications 2009 (25 pages), Notice of Meetings for 
Regular, Special and Emergency Meetings (1 page). 
 

3. Draft May 12, 2014 Application Flow Charts Pages 59-63 outlining Pre-Submittal Process and Formal 
Submittal Process. 
 

4. Town of Simsbury Organizational Chart revised March 27, 2014 
 

5. Economic Development Strategic Action Plan (Pages 50-105) approved by EDC on 12/4/95 with 4 
initiatives including a Goal “to develop public/private partnerships and advocate a process for 
continuous improvement and create a better atmosphere for economic development to take place.” 
(Page 55). “It is recommended that the Board of Selectmen issue a mandate (Executive Order) to instill the 
continuous improvement process in the operations of the Town of Simsbury.” Strategy 1: Create and 
implement an internal “ customer-service oriented”  operations plan developed by Town officials and 
employees, that focuses on improving customer satisfaction and on providing user-friendly, streamlined 
processes in support of economic development activities.” (Page 56) 
 

6. Report of the Joint Committee on Economic Development, Report to the Economic Development 
Commission, September 2001 (Pages5- 6)  Summary of Recommendations “Training : Provision that the 
Town find relevant training for all volunteers serving on boards and commissions combining 
presentations whenever applicable. In turn, volunteers will provide information to staff regarding 
perspectives on the [land use permit] approval process. 
 

7. Charter of the Town of Simsbury Section 610 Economic Development Commission (terms and 
appointment) and Section 7-136 (a) through (d) of the Connecticut General Statutes regarding Municipal 
Economic Development Commissions.  Simsbury has flexibility to reduce term limits to less than 5 years to 
attract EDC members and can annually appropriate for the EDC purposes a sum not exceeding one-
twentieth of one percent of the last-completed grand list of taxable property. 



Town of Simsbury Economic Development Task Force – Process Working Group Recommendations  
September 8, 2015  

 
 

8 

 
8. Report on Land Use Training and Education Available to Members of Local Land Use Agencies by State of 

Connecticut Office of Policy and Management dated January 13, 2006. This report recommends: 
a. Support land use education through strengthening of existing efforts, rather than creating or 

mandating new programs or entities. 
b. Support and strengthen the Land Use Education Partnership as the best vehicle for “basic training” 

of local land use officials. 
c. Regional Planning Organizations should continue to work with their member municipalities to 

ensure that the Partnership training is conducted for new commission members at appropriate 
intervals throughout the year. 

 

9. Robert’s Rules of Order, Newly Revised In Brief and Robert’s Rules of Order Newly Revised 10th Edition p. 
405 l. 13 to p. 407 l.3. on roll call voting procedures. 

10. Appendix A : Summary of Statutory Procedural Requirements pages 124-127 
11. Town of Simsbury Zoning Commission Rules of Procedure Revision 5/18/2011 
12. Summary of 2014 Survey by Connecticut Conference of Municipalities and State of Connecticut data of 

Municipalities in Connecticut with combined and separate Planning and Zoning Commissions by 
Commission Size, by Population, by Elected vs. Appointed Commissioners 

13. Memo from Hiram Peck to Nancy Haase on Orientation activities for Board and Commission members 
dated August 11, 2015. 

 



Town of Simsbury - Board of ___/___ Commission Members 8

Aternates 3

Motion By Second
Member 

One
Member 

Two
Member 

Three
Member 

Four
Member 

Five Member Six
Member 

Seven
Member 

Eight
Member 

Nine
Alternate 

One
Alternate 

Two
Alternate 

Three Absent Present Seated Aye Nay Abstain

1 Approve the minutes . . . 
Member 
Three

Member 
Four

aye aye aye nay abstain absent nay aye aye present absent 2 1 8 5 2 1

2
Deny the applicationsubmitted by the 
owners of property located at . . . 

Member Two Member Five nay aye nay nay aye nay nay nay present present absent 1 2 8 2 6 0

3 something else
Member One Member 

Seven
aye aye aye aye aye aye aye aye present absent present 1 2 8 8 0 0

4 something else 0 0 0 0 0 0
5 something else 0 0 0 0 0 0
6 something else 0 0 0 0 0 0
7 something else 0 0 0 0 0 0
8 something else 0 0 0 0 0 0
9 something else 0 0 0 0 0 0

10 something else 0 0 0 0 0 0
11 0 0 0 0 0 0
12 0 0 0 0 0 0
13 0 0 0 0 0 0
14 0 0 0 0 0 0
15 0 0 0 0 0 0
16 0 0 0 0 0 0
17 0 0 0 0 0 0
18 0 0 0 0 0 0
19 0 0 0 0 0 0
20 0 0 0 0 0 0
21 0 0 0 0 0 0
22 0 0 0 0 0 0
23 0 0 0 0 0 0
24 0 0 0 0 0 0
25 0 0 0 0 0 0
26 0 0 0 0 0 0
27 0 0 0 0 0 0
28 0 0 0 0 0 0
29 0 0 0 0 0 0
30 0 0 0 0 0 0
31 0 0 0 0 0 0

Member 
One

Member 
Two

Member 
Three

Member 
Four

Member 
Five Member Six

Member 
Seven

Member 
Eight

Member 
Nine

Alternate 
One

Alternate 
Two

Alternate 
Three

aye 2 3 2 1 2 1 1 2 0 1 0 0
nay 1 0 1 2 0 1 2 1 0 0 0 0
abstain 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
seated 3 3 3 3 3 2 3 3 0 1 0 0
present 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 2 1
absent 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 2

Vote Totals



 

  Town of Simsbury
 � � � � � � � � � � � 	 
 � � � � � �  �  � � � � � � 
 � � 
 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �
 

 

� � � � �  ! " !  # $ % & ' ( � ) ! ) * + $ , ! � - ) � � . # / + ! . . ! & � ' � 0 # � . ) . ) � $ ) ) � � 1 & $ '  & 2 3 � % � 4 ) + � � 5

6 7 8 9 : ; < = > ? < @ @ A ; : B C = D E F G H ; < I > J = K ; F L > F C B ? M N F @ = O ; ? @ ; F8 8 P 6 P 6 7 8 98 8 P Q P 6 7 8 9
R < S ; T G < ? U : B C = D E F G K ; F L > F C B ? M N F @ = O ; ? @ ; F U V ? W X
F ; S B ; J < 8 7 C B ? E @ ; = E C C < F G > L @ A ; 6 7 8 9 : ; < = > ? < @ : B C = D E F G H ; < I > J = U< W W ; Y @ @ A ; 6 7 8 9 N I C B ? B = @ F < @ B S ; Z ; ; > L [ 8 7 U 7 7 7 Y ; F @ A ; Z < W B \ B @ G ] Y ; F < @ B ? M N M F ; ; C ; ? @ U^ A ; 6 7 8 _ : ; < = > ? K \ < ? = < F ; E ? I ; F J < G X ^ A ; ` : ] A < = W A > = ; ? @ A ; 6 7 8 _ ^ H H Z I < @ ; = X



� � � 2 & % % & a ! � -  & 4 # + � � ) . $ ' � ! � 4 % #  �  a ! ) � ) � ! . . # / + ! . . ! & � $ �  $ ) ) $ 4 � �  � � ' � ) & 5

: B C = D E F G K ; F L > F C B ? M N F @ = O ; ? @ ; F V ? W X F ; b E ; = @ = @ A < @ @ A ; : B C = D E F G c ] : > L L ; F < L B S ; G ; < F Z < W B \ B @ G] Y ; F < @ B ? M N M F ; ; C ; ? @ X d > < W @ B > ? B = F ; b E ; = @ ; I < @ @ A B = C ; ; @ B ? M X

[ 8 7 U 7 7 7 J B \ \ D ; Y < B I < = F ; b E B F ; I D G @ A ; ] Y ; F < @ B ? M N M F ; ; C ; ? @
? > ? ;



 

  Town of Simsbury 
 
933 HOPMEADOW STREET  P.O. BOX 495  SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT 06070 
              

 
 

 
BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING 

AGENDA SUBMISSION FORM 
 
 

1.  Title of submission:  Resignation 
 
  

2.  Date of submission:  October 21, 2015 
 
 

3.  Date of Board Meeting:  October 26, 2015 
 
 

4.  Individual or Entity making the submission: Barbara A. Petitjean, 28 Drumlin Road, 
West Simsbury 

 
5.  Action requested of the Board of Selectmen: 

The Individual or Entity making the submission requests that the Board of Selectmen: 
Accepts the resignation of Barbara A. Petitjean from the Board of Ethics, effective 
October 20, 2015. 
 

6.  Summary of Submission: 
Resignation: Barbara A. Petitjean, Regular Member 
Board:  Board of Ethics 
Party:  Republican 
Effective:  October 20, 2015 
Term of Office:  January 1, 2015 to January 1, 2019 
   
 

7.  Financial Impact:  None 
 
 

8.  Description of documents included with submission: 
 The following documents are included with this submission and attached hereto: 
 
Letter of resignation 
 



Board of Selectmen Agenda Item 
October 21, 2015 
Page 2 
 

 
 



T O W N  O F  S I M S B U R Y  –  B O A R D  O F  S E L E C T M E N   
R E G U L A R  M E E T I N G  M I N U T E S  –  O C T O B E R  1 4 ,  2 0 1 5   

“ S u b j e c t  t o  A p p r o v a l ”  P a g e  | 1 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
The Regular Meeting of the Board of Selectmen was called to order at 7:00 p.m. in the Main 
Meeting Room of the Simsbury Town Offices.  Present were:  First Selectman Lisa Heavner; 
Board members Sean Askham, Cheryl Cook, Christopher Kelly, Philip Purciello and Michael 
Paine.   Others in attendance included:  Thomas Cooke, Director of Administrative Services and 
other interested parties. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Everyone stood for the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
PUBLIC AUDIENCE 
 
Mark Orenstein, 82 Old Meadow Plain Road, spoke about the Senior/Community Center 
project.  He showed the Board a piece of property at the end of Central School, behind the ball 
fields, that he thinks should be looked at for this project.  The Town already owns this property 
and it should be looked at as an alternative spot. 
 
Joan Coe, 26 Whitcomb Drive, spoke about being a candidate for First Selectman, a Town 
Manager form of government, zoning restriction waivers, job qualifications of a Board member, 
the Senior/Community Center and other issues. 
 
Robert Kalechman, 971 Hopmeadow Street, spoke about different issues he feels the Board is 
lying about, the First Selectman’s salary, how he is running for First Selectman, and other 
issues.  
 
Wooda McNevin from SCTV said they are starting the fund raising campaign.  He explained that 
SCTV is a free resource to the public of Simsbury, but they still have payroll, insurance, and 
maintenance costs.  He said they are asking for volunteers and for people to donate to SCTV.  
For more information, residents can go to SCTV.org.   
 
Mr. McNevin also said SCTV will be holding a mini film festival on October 23rd at 7:00 p.m. at 
the High School.  They are hoping that this event will help get people more interested and 
involved in SCTV. 
  
Mr. Purciello asked for a point of personal privilege to respond to some public comments.  He 
stated his prior employment positions including working for The Travelers and being in the U.S. 
Navy for six years.  He thanked Men’s Warehouse for employing him after completing his Navy 
tour.  He feels he is more than qualified for the position of Selectman.  
 
 



T O W N  O F  S I M S B U R Y  –  B O A R D  O F  S E L E C T M E N   
R E G U L A R  M E E T I N G  M I N U T E S  –  O C T O B E R  1 4 ,  2 0 1 5   

“ S u b j e c t  t o  A p p r o v a l ”  P a g e  | 2 
 
PRESENTATIONS 
 
Ms. Heavner said there were no presentations at this time. 
 
FIRST SELECTMAN’S REPORT 
 
Ms. Heavner thanked the Public Works Department, Library, Parks and Recreation, and Town 
staff for putting the “Touch a Truck” event on Saturday, October 3rd.  She said this was a very 
successful event. 
 
Ms. Heavner said the leaf pick-up schedule is now posted on www.simsbury-ct.gov or residents 
can call Public Works at 860-658-3222 to find out when their leaves will be picked up. 
 
Ms. Heavner said Simsbury Celebrates is looking for volunteers for its event on Saturday, 
November 28th.  If anyone is interested, they can contact the Planning Committee at 860-658-
3836 or by e-mailing them at simscelebrates@gmail.com. 
 
SELECTMEN ACTION 
 
a) Approve Tax Refunds 
 
Mr. Kelly made a motion to approve tax refunds in the amount of $11,053.26 as requested and 
approved by the Tax Collector.  Mr. Paine seconded the motion.  All were in favor and the 
motion passed. 
 
b) Consider Request for Waiver of Fees for the Landmark Building at 760 Hopmeadow Street 
 
This item was tabled for future consideration and on-going talks. 
 
c) Consider Tax Abatement Request for Chestnut Hill Associates of Simsbury, LLC 
 
This item was tabled due to uncompleted deliberations. 
  
d)  Acceptance of Archdiocese of Hartford donations in the amount of $1,133 for the Keep 

Simsbury Warm Fund and $2,133 for the Simsbury Food Closet 
 
Mr. Askham made a motion to accept the donations of $1,133 and $2,133 from the 
Archdiocese of Hartford for Keep Simsbury Warm and Simsbury Food Closet with thanks.  Ms. 
Cook seconded the motion.  All were in favor and the motion passed. 
 
e)  Acceptance of donation of $3,500 from the Hartford Foundation for Public Giving to 

support Social Services Department programs 

http://www.simsbury-ct.gov/
mailto:simscelebrates@gmail.com


T O W N  O F  S I M S B U R Y  –  B O A R D  O F  S E L E C T M E N   
R E G U L A R  M E E T I N G  M I N U T E S  –  O C T O B E R  1 4 ,  2 0 1 5   

“ S u b j e c t  t o  A p p r o v a l ”  P a g e  | 3 
 
 
Ms. Cook made a motion to accept the donation of $3,500 from the Hartford Foundation for 
Public Giving to support the Social Services Department programs with thanks.  Mr. Paine 
seconded the motion.  All were in favor and the motion passed. 
 
f)  Authorize the First Selectman to execute a Dial-A-Ride Operating Assistance Grant 

Contract with the Greater Hartford Transit District in the amount of $6,800 
 
Ms. Heavner noted that there is no Town match to this grant. 
 
Mr. Purciello made a motion to authorize the First Selectman to execute a Dial-A-Ride 
Operating Assistance Grant Contract with the Greater Hartford Transit District in the amount of 
$6,800.  Mr. Kelly seconded the motion.  All were in favor and the motion passed. 
 
g) Authorize the First Selectman to execute a CASAC Grant Application in the amount of 

$5,323 to Support Local Prevention Activities 
 
Ms. Heavner said that Social Services applies for this grant each year to provide for substance 
abuse prevention.  She said that no motion is needed on this item.  
 
h)  Approve Public Gathering Permit for Simsbury Celebrates Event on November 28, 2015 
 
Ms. Heavner said Simsbury Celebrates will be held on November 28th from 4-8:30 p.m.  Ms. Rea 
has secured all the necessary sign-offs and the application is ready for Board approval.  There is 
no financial impact on the Town. 
 
Mr. Kelly made a motion to approve the Public Gathering Permit for Simsbury Celebrates on 
November 28, 2015 with thanks.  Mr. Paine seconded the motion.  All were in favor and the 
motion passed. 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
a) Update on Senior Community Center Project 
 
Ms. Heavner said she received a letter from Chestnut Hill withdrawing from this, therefore, the 
Performing Arts Center and Andy’s Market space are still up for consideration.   
 
APPOINTMENTS AND RESIGNATIONS 
 
a) Appoint Peter L. Tedone (R) as a regular member of the Police Commission with an 

expiration date of January 1, 2019 
 



T O W N  O F  S I M S B U R Y  –  B O A R D  O F  S E L E C T M E N   
R E G U L A R  M E E T I N G  M I N U T E S  –  O C T O B E R  1 4 ,  2 0 1 5   

“ S u b j e c t  t o  A p p r o v a l ”  P a g e  | 4 
 
Mr. Askham made a motion to appoint Peter L. Tedone as a regular member of the Police 
Commission with an expiration date of January 1, 2019.  Ms. Cook seconded the motion.  All 
were in favor and the motion passed. 
 
REVIEW OF MINUTES 
 
a) Regular Meeting Minutes of September 28, 2015 – no action was taken and therefore, the 

minutes were adopted. 
 
SELECTMEN LIAISON AND SUB-COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
1.  Personnel – Approval of New and Updated Job Descriptions 

a.  Senior Building Maintainer 
 
Mr. Kelly said there was a Personnel Committee meeting and the following job descriptions 
have been approved by them.  The Senior Building Maintainer position is a new position, which 
was approved in the budget process. 
 
Mr. Kelly made a motion to approve the job description for the position of Senior Building 
Maintainer – T8.  Mr. Askham seconded the motion.  All were in favor and the motion passed. 
 

b. Project Administrator – DPW 
 
Mr. Kelly made a motion to approve the job description for the positon of Project 
Administrator- DPW – A-1.  Mr. Askham seconded the motion.  All were in favor and the motion 
passed. 
 

c. Administrative Assistant – WPCF 
 
Mr. Kelly said this was a change to a position.  This makes the position more consistent with a 
similar position in the Public Works Department and it reflects on billing and cross-training. 
  
Mr. Kelly made a motion to approve the job description and title change for the position of 
Administrative Secretary II-WPCF.  Mr. Askham seconded the motion.  All were in favor and the 
motion passed. 
 
2.  Finance – no report at this time 
3.  Welfare – no report at this time 
4.  Public Safety – no report at this time 
5.  Board of Education – no report at this time 
 



T O W N  O F  S I M S B U R Y  –  B O A R D  O F  S E L E C T M E N   
R E G U L A R  M E E T I N G  M I N U T E S  –  O C T O B E R  1 4 ,  2 0 1 5   

“ S u b j e c t  t o  A p p r o v a l ”  P a g e  | 5 
 
Ms. Cook thanked the Simsbury Bike Friendly Committee who worked very hard for the 
National Bike Challenge event.  Simsbury came out 5th in the whole country and Weatogue was 
2nd.  Everyone had a great time. 
 
Ms. Heavner said the Board will be discussing the open space disposition policy at the next 
meeting.   
 
Ms. Heavner thanked the schools, parents and volunteers for helping with the bike/walk to 
school month. 
 
ADJOURN 
 
Mr. Askham made a motion to adjourn at 7:34 p.m.  Ms. Cook seconded the motion.  All were 
in favor and the motion passed. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Kathi Radocchio 
Clerk 


	Agenda 
	a) Tax Refunds
	b) Appointment-Director of Planning
	c) Tax Abatement (Chestnut Hill)
	d) Eagle Scout Project
	e) Simsbury Farms 501C-3
	f) Donation for Simsbury Farms Ice Rink
	g) Tariffville Fire District Water Tank
	h) FY15 Transfers
	i) EDTF Process Group Recommendations
	j) 2015 Season at Simsbury Meadows PAC
	Resignation-Petitjean(BOE)
	151014 BOS Minutes



